Declarations:

With God's Words, You Will Overcome!

-Book 5: Ignite Your Destiny-

By Dawn M. Flores

Declarations: With God's Words, You Will Overcome!

-Book 5: Ignite Your Destiny-

By Dawn M. Flores

© 2021 Dawn M. Flores. First Edition

Synergy of the Ages NW

Glory Fire Army International Ministries

Scriptures: World English Bible (WEB)

by Public Domain. The name "World English Bible" is trademarked.

Contents

Trust	1
I Will Trust in God Alone!	2
Trust in Our God Who Lifts the Weary!	7
All Hindrances are Gone!	10
You Have Grace & Truth Written Upon the Tablet of Your Heart!	13
The Lord Rewards You & Expands Your Boundaries!	16
Purpose	20
As You Sow, So Shall You Reap!	21
I Live My Life to Praise!	25
I Am Calling Forth Riches Hidden in Secret Places!	
Speak God's Promises & Shift the Atmosphere!	
God is Directing His Strong & Bold Warriors to Pray During the Night Watch!	35
Strength	39
I Am Encouraged – I Will Rejoice!	40
The Lord is Your Comfort & Joy!	
By Acts of Courage Your Faith is Seen!	
I Obey the Word of the Lord Wholeheartedly!	52
I Focus on the Promise!	55
Holy Calling	58
You Have a Holy Calling!	59
I Am Walking in Christ's Divine Nature!	63
You are Boldly Touching the World!	66
Everything You Put Your Hands to is Blessed!	69
By Faith I Move Forth in God's Call!	73
Bold	76
Boldness to Move Through the Enemy's Camp!	
God's Sovereignty, Protection & Deliverence!	81
I Am at Peace for I Am Surrounded By a Wall of Fire!	

God's Fire is Present to Show He Alone is the Lord God Almighty!	90
Prepare to Enter New Territory	95

Trust

I Will Trust in God Alone!

Proverbs 3:3-10; Deuteronomy 32:1-14; Isaiah 26:1-13; Jeremiah 17:5-10 (WEB)

Proverbs 3:3-10

- ³ Don't let kindness and truth forsake you. Bind them around your neck. Write them on the tablet of your heart.
 ⁴ So you will find favor, and good understanding in the sight of God and man.
 ⁵ Trust in Yahweh with all your heart, and don't lean on your own understanding.
 ⁶ In all your ways acknowledge him, and he will make your paths straight.
 ⁷ Don't be wise in your own eyes. Fear Yahweh, and depart from evil.
 ⁸ It will be health to your body,
- and nourishment to your bones. ⁹ Honor Yahweh with your substance,
- with the first fruits of all your increase:
- ¹⁰ so your barns will be filled with plenty, and your vats will overflow with new wine.

Deuteronomy 32:1-14

Give ear, you heavens, and I will speak. Let the earth hear the words of my mouth. ² My doctrine will drop as the rain. My speech will condense as the dew, as the misty rain on the tender grass, as the showers on the herb. ³ For I will proclaim Yahweh's name. Ascribe greatness to our God! ⁴The Rock: his work is perfect, for all his ways are just. A God of faithfulness who does no wrong, just and right is he. ⁵They have dealt corruptly with him. They are not his children, because of their defect. They are a perverse and crooked generation. ⁶ Is this the way you repay Yahweh, foolish and unwise people? Isn't he your father who has bought you? He has made you and established you. ⁷ Remember the days of old. Consider the years of many generations. Ask your father, and he will show you; your elders, and they will tell you.

⁸When the Most High gave to the nations their inheritance, when he separated the children of men, he set the bounds of the peoples according to the number of the children of Israel. ⁹ For Yahweh's portion is his people. Jacob is the lot of his inheritance. ¹⁰ He found him in a desert land, in the waste howling wilderness. He surrounded him. He cared for him. He kept him as the apple of his eye. ¹¹As an eagle that stirs up her nest, that flutters over her young, he spread abroad his wings, he took them, he bore them on his feathers. ¹² Yahweh alone led him. There was no foreign god with him. ¹³ He made him ride on the high places of the earth. He ate the increase of the field. He caused him to suck honey out of the rock, oil out of the flinty rock; ¹⁴ butter from the herd, and milk from the flock, with fat of lambs. rams of the breed of Bashan, and goats, with the finest of the wheat. From the blood of the grape, you drank wine.

Isaiah 26:1-13

In that day, this song will be sung in the land of Judah:

"We have a strong city.

God appoints salvation for walls and bulwarks.

- ² Open the gates, that the righteous nation may enter: the one which keeps faith.
- ³You will keep whoever's mind is steadfast in perfect peace, because he trusts in you.

⁴Trust in Yahweh forever;

for in Yah, Yahweh, is an everlasting Rock.

⁵ For he has brought down those who dwell on high, the lofty city. He lays it low.

He lays it low even to the ground.

He brings it even to the dust.

⁶The foot shall tread it down.

even the feet of the poor

and the steps of the needy."

⁷The way of the just is uprightness.

You who are upright make the path of the righteous level.

⁸Yes, in the way of your judgments, Yahweh, we have waited for you. Your name and your renown are the desire of our soul.

⁹With my soul I have desired you in the night.

Yes, with my spirit within me I will seek you earnestly;

for when your judgments are in the earth, the inhabitants of the world learn righteousness.

¹⁰ Let favor be shown to the wicked,

yet he will not learn righteousness.

In the land of uprightness he will deal wrongfully, and will not see Yahweh's majesty.

¹¹Yahweh, your hand is lifted up, yet they don't see; but they will see your zeal for the people, and be disappointed. Yes, fire will consume your adversaries.

¹² Yahweh, you will ordain peace for us, for you have also done all our work for us.

¹³ Yahweh our God, other lords besides you have had dominion over us, but we will only acknowledge your name.

Jeremiah 17:5-10

⁵Yahweh says:

"Cursed is the man who trusts in man, relies on strength of flesh, and whose heart departs from Yahweh.

⁶ For he will be like a bush in the desert, and will not see when good comes,

but will inhabit the parched places in the wilderness, an uninhabited salt land.

⁷ "Blessed is the man who trusts in Yahweh, and whose confidence is in Yahweh.

⁸ For he will be as a tree planted by the waters,

who spreads out its roots by the river,

and will not fear when heat comes, but its leaf will be green,

and will not be concerned in the year of drought. It won't cease from yielding fruit.

⁹The heart is deceitful above all things and it is exceedingly corrupt. Who can know it?

¹⁰ "I, Yahweh, search the mind.
I try the heart,
even to give every man according to his ways,
according to the fruit of his doings."

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare I will not allow GRACE and TRUTH to leave me I will bind them around my neck and WRITE THEM ON THE TABLETS OF MY HEART! By living in this manner, I will WIN FAVOR and ESTEEM IN THE SIGHT OF GOD, ELOHIM and of People.
- I declare I TRUST IN THE LORD/ADONAI WITH ALL MY HEART! I will not rely on my own understanding. In ALL MY WAYS I WILL ACKNOWLEDGE HIM knowing that HE WILL LEVEL MY PATHS. I will not be conceited about my wisdom or understanding but will FEAR THE LORD/ADONAI and turn from all evil.
- I decree and declare my body will be full of health and strength as I TRUST IN THE LORD/ADONAI and ACKNOWLEDGE HIM in all my ways. I DEDICATE MY LIFE and FINANCES to the Lord/Adonai, giving Him the firstfruits of all my income. THANK YOU GOD ALMIGHTY/EL SHADDAI for you have filled my granaries and vats – I HAVE NO LACK.
- I will PROCLAIM THE NAME OF THE LORD/ADONAI. I declare the GREATNESS OF MY GOD/ELOHIM – the ROCK! His work is PERFECT, for ALL HIS WAYS ARE JUST! He is a TRUSTWORTHY GOD/ELOHIM Who does no wrong. HE IS RIGHTEOUS AND STRAIGHT!
- I decree and declare God Almighty/El Shaddai is not corrupt; HE DOES NO WRONG! The defect is in His children, a crooked and perverted generation. People who do not trust in Him but turn to their own ways – they are foolish, lacking in wisdom. Is this the way the world repays the Lord/Adonai?
- I decree and declare it is THE LORD CREATOR/YAWEH-BORE, Who formed you and prepared you! When God Most High/El'Elyon gave each nation its heritage, when He divided the human race, HE ASSIGNED THE BOUNDARIES of Peoples according to Israel's population; but the Lord's/Adonai's SHARE WAS HIS OWN PEOPLE – JACOB/YA'AKOV HIS ALLOTED HERITAGE.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonal ALONE LEADS HIS PEOPLE not some alien god. He will make you RIDE ON THE HEIGHTS OF THE EARTH. You will eat the produce of the fields. HE IS YOUR PROVISION and His abundance comes forth from His storehouses!
- I decree and declare to ALL WHOSE DESIRE RESTS ON THE LORD/ADONAI: HE PRESERVES YOU IN PERFECT PEACE, because you TRUST in Him! TRUST IN THE LORD/ADONAI FOREVER, because in Yaweh, the Lord/Yah Adonai, is a ROCK OF AGES.
- I decree and declare the WAY OF THE RIGHTEOUS IS LEVEL RIGHTEOUS ONE, Lord/Adonai, YOU smooth the path for the Righteous. Following the way of Your judgments, WE PUT OUR HOPE IN YOU! The desire of our soul is to REMEMBER YOU and YOUR NAME!

- I decree and declare those who put their trust in humans, who rely on merely human strength, have hearts that turn away from the Lord/Adonai. But BLESSED IS THE MAN WHO TRUSTS IN THE LORD/ADONAI – the Lord/Adonai will be his SECURITY!
- I decree and declare the one who TRUSTS in God/Elohim will be like a tree planted near water, it does not notice when heat comes, and its foliage is luxuriant. It is not anxious in a year of drought but KEEPS ON YIELDING FRUIT!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 14, 2021]

Trust in Our God Who Lifts the Weary!

Psalms 63:1-8; 68:4-10, 19-20; 119:25-32; 2 Corinthians 12:9-10; Isaiah 40:28-31 (WEB)

Psalm 63:1-8

¹God, you are my God. I will earnestly seek you. My soul thirsts for you. My flesh longs for you, in a dry and weary land, where there is no water. ²So I have seen you in the sanctuary, watching your power and your glory. ³Because your loving kindness is better than life, my lips shall praise you. ⁴So I will bless you while I live. I will lift up my hands in your name. ⁵My soul shall be satisfied as with the richest food. My mouth shall praise you with joyful lips, ⁶when I remember you on my bed, and think about you in the night watches. ⁷For you have been my help. I will rejoice in the shadow of your wings. ⁸My soul stays close to you. Your right hand holds me up.

Psalm 68:4-10, 19-20

⁴ Sing to God! Sing praises to his name! Extol him who rides on the clouds: to Yah, his name! Rejoice before him! ⁵ A father of the fatherless, and a defender of the widows, is God in his holy habitation. ⁶ God sets the lonely in families. He brings out the prisoners with singing, but the rebellious dwell in a sun-scorched land.

⁷ God, when you went out before your people, when you marched through the wilderness...*Selah.* ⁸ The earth trembled. The sky also poured down rain at the presence of the God of Sinai— at the presence of God, the God of Israel. ⁹ You, God, sent a plentiful rain. You confirmed your inheritance when it was weary. ¹⁰ Your congregation lived therein. You, God, prepared your goodness for the poor....

¹⁹ Blessed be the Lord, who daily bears our burdens, even the God who is our salvation. *Selah.*²⁰ God is to us a God of deliverance. To Yahweh, the Lord, belongs escape from death.

Psalm 119:25-32

²⁵ My soul is laid low in the dust. Revive me according to your word! ²⁶ I declared my ways, and you answered me. Teach me your statutes. ²⁷ Let me understand the teaching of your precepts! Then I will meditate on your wondrous works. ²⁸ My soul is weary with sorrow: strengthen me according to your word. ²⁹ Keep me from the way of deceit. Grant me your law graciously! ³⁰ I have chosen the way of truth. I have set your ordinances before me. ³¹ I cling to your statutes, Yahweh. Don't let me be disappointed. ³² I run in the path of your commandments, for you have set my heart free.

2 Corinthians 12:9-10

⁹ He has said to me, "My grace is sufficient for you, for my power is made perfect in weakness." Most gladly therefore I will rather glory in my weaknesses, that the power of Christ may rest on me.

¹⁰ Therefore I take pleasure in weaknesses, in injuries, in necessities, in persecutions, and in distresses, for Christ's sake. For when I am weak, then am I strong.

Isaiah 40:28-31

²⁸ Haven't you known? Haven't you heard? The everlasting God, Yahweh, the Creator of the ends of the earth, doesn't faint. He isn't weary. His understanding is unsearchable. ²⁹ He gives power to the weak. He increases the strength of him who has no might. ³⁰ Even the youths faint and get weary, and the

young men utterly fall; ³¹ but those who wait for Yahweh will renew their strength. They will mount up with wings like eagles. They will run, and not be weary. They will walk, and not faint.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare God/Elohim YOU ARE MY GOD; EARNESTLY I SEEK YOU! In a dry and weary land, my Soul THIRSTS for You; my Flesh LONGS for You! I LOOK for and SEE Your POWER and GLORY! Your LOVINGKINDNESS is BETTER than LIFE! My Lips will FOREVER PRAISE YOU!
- I decree and declare I will BLESS YOU as long as I live. In Your Name I LIFT UP MY HANDS! My Soul is SATISFIED as with the Holy Fat and Anointing Oil; my mouth PRAISES YOU with Joyful Lips.
- I decree and declare I REMEMBER YOU as I rest on my bed, I MEDITATE ON YOU through the Night Watches. For YOU Lord/Adonai have been my HELP, and in the SHADOW OF YOUR WINGS I Sing for JOY. My Soul clings to You – Your Right Hand UPHOLDS me!
- I decree and declare I will SING PRAISES to God Almighty/El Shaddai. I PREPARE the Road for Him who rides through the deserts, whose Name is the Lord/Adonai – and I REJOICE BEFORE HIM!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is a Father of Orphans, Defender of Widows, in His Holy Dwelling. God/Elohim SETTLES the Lonely in a Home. He leads Prisoners out to PROSPERITY.
- I decree and declare the World will witness as God/Elohim GOES OUT BEFORE HIS PEOPLE as He marches through the desert, the Earth SHAKES, the Heavens RAIN at the Presence of God – the One of Sinai – at the Presence of God/Elohim, God/Elohim of Israel!
- I decree and declare Lord/Adonai, You POUR DOWN ABUNDANT RAIN. You SUSTAIN Your Weary Inheritance. Your community settles in it; Your GOODNESS, O God/Elohim, PROVIDES FOR THE POOR.
- I decree and declare, according to Your Word, I WILL BE REVIVED! I MEDITATE on Your Wonders, Lord/Adonai. You help me to DISCERN the Way of Your PRECEPTS, so I may meditate on Your Wonders. Though my soul weeps with grief, by the POWER OF YOUR SPIRIT/RUACH, I will STAND FIRM with Your Word!
- I decree and declare You, Lord/Adonai TURN me away from the deceitful way; You are GRACIOUS to me with Your Law/Torah. I CHOOSE the way of FAITHFULNESS. I set my Heart on Your Judgments. I cling to Your testimonies. You will not put me to shame. I run the course of Your Commandments, for You open wide my Heart.

- I decree and declare the Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua is my STRENGTH! For He said, "My GRACE is sufficient for you, for POWER is made perfect in weakness." So I will BOAST all the more gladly in my weakness, so that the Power of Christ/Messiah may dwell in me.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is the ETERNAL GOD/ELOHIM, the Creator of the Ends of the Earth, the Creator of the Universe! HE DOES NOT GROW TIRED OR WEARY. His UNDERSTANDING is unsearchable!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai GIVES STRENGTH TO THE WEARY, and to one without vigor HE ADDS MIGHT! Even youths grow tired and weary, and young men stumble and fall, but THEY WHO WAIT FOR THE LORD/ADONAI WILL RENEW THEIR STRENGTH! They will SOAR UP with wings as Eagles. They will RUN, and not grow weary. They will WALK, and not faint!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, October 21, 2019]

All Hindrances are Gone!

Acts 28: 23-31; Deuteronomy 6:4-9; Isaiah 45:1-3; Psalm 121:1-8 (WEB)

Acts 28: 23-31

²³ When they had appointed him a day, many people came to him at his lodging. He explained to them, testifying about God's Kingdom, and persuading them concerning Jesus, both from the law of Moses and from the prophets, from morning until evening. ²⁴ Some believed the things which were spoken, and some disbelieved. ²⁵ When they didn't agree among themselves, they departed after Paul had spoken one word, "The Holy Spirit spoke rightly through Isaiah the prophet to our fathers, ²⁶ saying,

'Go to this people and say,
in hearing, you will hear,
but will in no way understand.
In seeing, you will see,
but will in no way perceive.
²⁷ For this people's heart has grown callous.
Their ears are dull of hearing.
Their eyes they have closed.
Lest they should see with their eyes,
hear with their ears,
understand with their heart,
and would turn again,
then I would heal them.'Isaiah 6:9-10

²⁸ "Be it known therefore to you, that the salvation of God is sent to the nations, and they will listen."

²⁹ When he had said these words, the Jews departed, having a great dispute among themselves

³⁰ Paul stayed two whole years in his own rented house and received all who were coming to him, ³¹ preaching God's Kingdom, and teaching the things concerning the Lord Jesus Christ with all boldness, without hindrance.

Deuteronomy 6:4-9

⁴ Hear, Israel: Yahweh is our God. Yahweh is one. ⁵ You shall love Yahweh your God with all your heart, with all your soul, and with all your might. ⁶ These words, which I command you today, shall be on your heart; ⁷ and you shall teach them diligently to your children, and shall talk of them when you sit in your house, and when you walk by the way, and when you lie down, and when you rise up. ⁸ You shall bind them for a sign on your hand, and they shall be for frontlets between your eyes. ⁹ You shall write them on the door posts of your house and on your gates.

Isaiah 45:1-3

Yahweh says to his anointed, to Cyrus, whose right hand I have held, to subdue nations before him, and strip kings of their armor; to open the doors before him, and the gates shall not be shut:

² "I will go before you and make the rough places smooth. I will break the doors of bronze in pieces and cut apart the bars of iron.

³ I will give you the treasures of darkness and hidden riches of secret places,

that you may know that it is I, Yahweh, who calls you by your name, even the God of Israel.

Psalm 121:1-8

I will lift up my eyes to the hills.

Where does my help come from?

² My help comes from Yahweh, who made heaven and earth.

 ³ He will not allow your foot to be moved. He who keeps you will not slumber.
 ⁴ Behold, he who keeps Israel will neither slumber nor sleep.

⁵Yahweh is your keeper.

Yahweh is your shade on your right hand.

⁶The sun will not harm you by day,

nor the moon by night.

⁷Yahweh will keep you from all evil.

He will keep your soul.

⁸Yahweh will keep your going out and your coming in, from this time forward, and forever more.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare in all I do I will TESTIFY about the Kingdom of God, trying to PERSUADE the People about Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah from the Scriptures. I will PRAISE the Lord for Each One who is convinced by what is shared, yet I know there will be those who refuse to believe. It is my responsibility to share the TRUTH and I will leave the results with Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh.
- I declare the words of Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh, "You will keep on hearing but will not understand; you will keep on looking but will never see. For the heart of this people has become dull, their ears can barely hear, and they have shut their eyes. Otherwise they might see with their eyes, hear with their ears, and understand with their hearts. Then they would turn back, and I would heal them."
- I decree and declare as I am OBEDIENT to PROCLAIM the Kingdom of God, teaching about the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah with all BOLDNESS and WITHOUT HINDRANCE! I PRAISE the Lord for His WISDOM, GUIDANCE and PROTECTION in all I do and say.

- I decree and declare HEAR O Israel, the LORD OUR GOD, THE LORD IS ONE/SHEMA Israel, ADONAI ELOHEINU, ADONAI ECHAD! I will LOVE the Lord my God/Adonai Elohai with ALL MY HEART and with ALL MY SOUL and with ALL MY STRENGTH! The Commandments of the Lord/Adonai are FOREVER on my Heart; I will TEACH them DILIGENTLY to my Children and SPEAK of THEM when I sit in my house, when I walk by the way, when I lie down and when I rise up. They are always before my eyes!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai says to His Anointed Ones, "I GRASP your Right Hand, to SUBDUE Nations before you, to LOOSE Belts of Kings, to OPEN DOORS before you so that GATES WILL NOT BE SHUT. I will go before you and make crooked places straight. I will SHATTER BRONZE DOORS and cut through iron bars."
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is giving me TREASURES of darkness and hidden RICHES of Secret Places, and I KNOW and PRAISE Him Who CALLS ME BY MY NAME!
- I decree and declare I LIFT UP MY EYES to the Mountains, with JOY, knowing that my HELP comes from the Lord/Adonai Maker of Heaven and Earth!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai will not allow my foot to slip; my Keeper does not slumber. HE NEITHER SLUMBERS NOR SLEEPS. The Lord/Adonai is my Keeper; He is the Shadow at my right hand! The Sun will not strike me by day, nor the Moon by night.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai PROTECTS me from all evil HE GUARDS MY LIFE! He WATCHES OVER my coming and going from this time forth and FOREVERMORE!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, August 9, 2019]

You Have Grace & Truth Written Upon the Tablet of Your Heart!

Luke 18:1-8; Proverbs 3:1-6; Acts 13:38-52; Galatians 3:2-9 (WEB)

Luke 18:1-8

He also spoke a parable to them that they must always pray, and not give up, ² saying, "There was a judge in a certain city who didn't fear God, and didn't respect man. ³ A widow was in that city, and she often came to him, saying, 'Defend me from my adversary!' ⁴ He wouldn't for a while, but afterward he said to himself, 'Though I neither fear God, nor respect man, ⁵ yet because this widow bothers me, I will defend her, or else she will wear me out by her continual coming.'"

⁶The Lord said, "Listen to what the unrighteous judge says. ⁷Won't God avenge his chosen ones who are crying out to him day and night, and yet he exercises patience with them? ⁸I tell you that he will avenge them quickly. Nevertheless, when the Son of Man comes, will he find faith on the earth?"

Proverbs 3:1-6

My son, don't forget my teaching;

but let your heart keep my commandments:

² for they will add to you length of days,

years of life, and peace.

³ Don't let kindness and truth forsake you. Bind them around your neck.

Write them on the tablet of your heart.

⁴So you will find favor,

and good understanding in the sight of God and man.

⁵ Trust in Yahweh with all your heart,

and don't lean on your own understanding.

⁶ In all your ways acknowledge him, and he will make your paths straight.

Acts 13:38-52

³⁸ Be it known to you therefore, brothers, that through this man is proclaimed to you remission of sins, ³⁹ and by him everyone who believes is justified from all things, from which you could not be justified by the law of Moses. ⁴⁰ Beware therefore, lest that come on you which is spoken in the prophets:

⁴¹ 'Behold, you scoffers, and wonder, and perish;

- for I work a work in your days,
- a work which you will in no way believe, if one declares it to you." Habakkuk 1:5

⁴² So when the Jews went out of the synagogue, the Gentiles begged that these words might be preached to them the next Sabbath. ⁴³ Now when the synagogue broke up, many of the Jews and of the devout proselytes followed Paul and Barnabas; who, speaking to them, urged them to continue in the grace of God. ⁴⁴ The next Sabbath, almost the whole city was gathered together to hear the word of God. ⁴⁵ But when the Jews saw the multitudes, they were filled with jealousy, and contradicted the things which were spoken by Paul, and blasphemed.

⁴⁶ Paul and Barnabas spoke out boldly, and said, "It was necessary that God's word should be spoken to you first. Since indeed you thrust it from yourselves, and judge yourselves unworthy of eternal life, behold, we turn to the Gentiles. ⁴⁷ For so has the Lord commanded us, saying,

'I have set you as a light for the Gentiles,

that you should bring salvation to the uttermost parts of the earth." Isaiah 49:6

⁴⁸ As the Gentiles heard this, they were glad, and glorified the word of God. As many as were appointed to eternal life believed. ⁴⁹ The Lord's word was spread abroad throughout all the region. ⁵⁰ But the Jews stirred up the devout and prominent women and the chief men of the city, and stirred up a persecution against Paul and Barnabas, and threw them out of their borders. ⁵¹ But they shook off the dust of their feet against them, and came to Iconium. ⁵² The disciples were filled with joy and with the Holy Spirit.

Galatians 3:2-9

²I just want to learn this from you: Did you receive the Spirit by the works of the law, or by hearing of faith? ³ Are you so foolish? Having begun in the Spirit, are you now completed in the flesh? ⁴ Did you suffer so many things in vain, if it is indeed in vain? ⁵ He therefore who supplies the Spirit to you and does miracles among you, does he do it by the works of the law, or by hearing of faith? ⁶ Even so, Abraham "believed God, and it was counted to him for righteousness." <u>Genesis 15:6</u> ⁷ Know therefore that those who are of faith are children of Abraham. ⁸ The Scripture, foreseeing that God would justify the Gentiles by faith, preached the Good News beforehand to Abraham, saying, "In you all the nations will be blessed." <u>Genesis 12:3</u>; <u>18:18</u>; <u>22:18</u> ⁹ So then, those who are of faith are blessed with the faithful Abraham.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare you walk in FAITH, PRAYING ALWAYS, keeping your EYES on the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah. In this way you DO NOT LOSE HEART. God Almighty/El Shaddai GRANTS JUSTICE to His Chosen People who CRY OUT to Him day and night. He is not delaying; His JUDGMENT is in your FAVOR. KEEP STRONG in YOUR FAITH and TRUST ALWAYS.
- I decree and declare you have written GRACE and TRUTH upon the Tablet of your Heart. Because you have, you have won FAVOR and ESTEEM in the sight of God/Elohim and of People.
- I decree and declare you TRUST in the Lord/Adonai with ALL YOUR HEART and you do not rely on your own understanding. In all your WAYS, you ACKNOWLEDGE Him; then He LEVELS your PATHS!
- I decree and declare it is through Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah that FORGIVENESS of Sins is PROCLAIMED! That is, God/Elohim CLEARS Everyone who puts his TRUST in Him! Be on the ALERT, so that you fall into UNBELIEF of the WORKS done in your midst.
- I decree and declare there are MULTITUDES of Jews and Gentiles in these Last Days who are SEEING the TRUTH of the Good News; they are HOLDING FAST to the LOVE and KINDNESS of God/Elohim, and SALVATION through Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.

- I decree and declare there will be those who respond to the message of the Good News with jealousy and anger, but FEAR NOT; you are filled with the BOLDNESS of Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh. He will give you the Words to speak, the Testimony, that many will come to the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah. You are a LIGHT for the World, that the People will know the DELIVERANCE through Christ/Messiah.
- I decree and declare you are FILLED with JOY and with Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh because the Lord/Adonai is using you as His MESSENGER to share His TRUTH with the World. You will not be concerned about those who react negatively; you will shake off the dust from your feet and move on.
- I decree and declare ALL who TRUST in the Good News and are FAITHFUL to it receive the Spirit/Ruach! It is God/Elohim who supplies you with the Spirit/Ruach and works MIRACLES among you; He does this because you TRUST in what you heard and are FAITHFUL to it!
- I decree and declare it remains the same today as it was with Abraham: "He TRUSTED in God and was FAITHFUL to Him, and that was credited to his account as RIGHTEOUSNESS." Be assured that it is those who LIVE by TRUSTING and being FAITHFUL who are really Children of Abraham.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 15, 2019]

The Lord Rewards You & Expands Your Boundaries!

2 Samuel 22:21-41; 1 Chronicles 4:9-10; Isaiah 54:1-5; 2 Corinthians 10:10-18 (WEB)

2 Samuel 22:21-41

²¹Yahweh rewarded me according to my righteousness. He rewarded me according to the cleanness of my hands. ²² For I have kept Yahweh's ways, and have not wickedly departed from my God. ²³ For all his ordinances were before me. As for his statutes, I didn't depart from them. ²⁴ I was also perfect toward him. I kept myself from my iniquity. ²⁵ Therefore Yahweh has rewarded me according to my righteousness, According to my cleanness in his eyesight. ²⁶ With the merciful you will show yourself merciful. With the perfect man you will show yourself perfect. ²⁷ With the pure you will show yourself pure. With the crooked you will show yourself shrewd. ²⁸ You will save the afflicted people, But your eyes are on the arrogant, that you may bring them down. ²⁹ For you are my lamp, Yahweh. Yahweh will light up my darkness. ³⁰ For by you, I run against a troop. By my God, I leap over a wall. ³¹As for God, his way is perfect. Yahweh's word is tested. He is a shield to all those who take refuge in him. ³² For who is God, besides Yahweh? Who is a rock, besides our God? ³³God is my strong fortress. He makes my way perfect. ³⁴ He makes his feet like hinds' feet, and sets me on my high places. ³⁵ He teaches my hands to war, so that my arms bend a bow of bronze. ³⁶ You have also given me the shield of your salvation. Your gentleness has made me great. ³⁷ You have enlarged my steps under me. My feet have not slipped. ³⁸I have pursued my enemies and destroyed them. I didn't turn again until they were consumed. ³⁹I have consumed them, and struck them through, so that they can't arise. Yes, they have fallen under my feet. ⁴⁰ For you have armed me with strength for the battle.

You have subdued under me those who rose up against me.

⁴¹ You have also made my enemies turn their backs to me,

that I might cut off those who hate me.

1 Chronicles 4:9-10

⁹ Jabez was more honorable than his brothers. His mother named him Jabez, saying, "Because I bore him with sorrow."

¹⁰ Jabez called on the God of Israel, saying, "Oh that you would bless me indeed, and enlarge my border! May your hand be with me, and may you keep me from evil, that I may not cause pain!"

God granted him that which he requested.

Isaiah 54:1-5

"Sing, barren, you who didn't give birth; break out into singing, and cry aloud, you who didn't travail with child: for more are the children of the desolate than the children of the married wife," says Yahweh.
² "Enlarge the place of your tent, and let them stretch out the curtains of your habitations;

don't spare: lengthen your cords, and strengthen your stakes.

³ For you will spread out on the right hand and on the left; and your offspring will possess the nations and settle in desolate cities.

⁴ "Don't be afraid, for you will not be ashamed. Don't be confounded, for you will not be disappointed.
For you will forget the shame of your youth.

You will remember the reproach of your widowhood no more. ⁵ For your Maker is your husband; Yahweh of Armies is his name.

The Holy One of Israel is your Redeemer.

He will be called the God of the whole earth.

2 Corinthians 10:10-18:

For, "His letters", they say, "are weighty and strong, but his bodily presence is weak, and his speech is despised." ¹¹ Let such a person consider this, that what we are in word by letters when we are absent, such are we also in deed when we are present. ¹² For we are not bold to number or compare ourselves with some of those who commend themselves. But they themselves, measuring themselves by themselves, and comparing themselves with themselves, are without understanding. ¹³ But we will not boast beyond proper limits, but within the boundaries with which God appointed to us, which reach even to you. ¹⁴ For we don't stretch ourselves too much, as though we didn't reach to you. For we came even as far as to you with the Good News of Christ, ¹⁵ not boasting beyond proper limits in other men's labors, but having hope that as your faith grows, we will be abundantly enlarged by you in our sphere of influence, ¹⁶ so as to preach the Good News even to the parts beyond you, not to boast in what someone else has already done. ¹⁷ But "he who boasts, let him boast in the Lord." Jeremiah 9:24 ¹⁸ For it isn't he who commends himself who is approved, but whom the Lord commends.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms

to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai REWARDS me for my UPRIGHTNESS, He repays me because my HANDS ARE CLEAN. For I keep the Ways of the Lord/Adonai, I have not done evil by leaving my God; for all His Rulings are before me, I will not depart from His Regulations.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is MERCIFUL with the Merciful; He is PURE with the Champion of Purity; He is HONEST with the Honest; but He is CUNNING with the Crooked. Our God SAVES the Afflicted but HUMBLES the haughty. The Lord/Adonai is a LIGHT unto my PATH; He LIGHTS UP my darkness.
- I decree and declare, as you walk with our God, you will have STRENGTH to run through a whole troop of men, and with God you can LEAP a wall. God's way is PERFECT, the Word of the Lord/Adonai has been tested by FIRE, He SHIELDS all who take REFUGE in Him.
- I decree and declare God/Elohim is Lord/Adonai and He is my ROCK. He is my STRENGTH and PROTECTION; He makes my way go STRAIGHT! He makes me SWIFT and SURE-FOOTED as a deer and ENABLES me to STAND on High Places.
- I decree and declare the Lord gives me His SHIELD, which is SALVATION; His ANSWERS make me great. He lengthens the steps I can take and prevents my ankles from turning. I PRAISE You, Lord/Adonai, for raising me above my enemies.
- I decree and declare, as a Child of the King, you are HONORED. The Lord/Adonai will bless you by ENLARGING your territory. His Hand is upon you; He will keep you from harm, so that you will not be in pain. GOD/ELOHIM grants you your requests.
- I decree and declare you who have been rejected and deserted; you who have been barren will BURST INTO SONG and SHOUT FOR JOY! Enlarge the space for your tent and extend the curtain of your dwelling; DO NOT HOLD BACK, LENGTHEN your cords, make your tent pegs FIRM!
- I decree and declare YOU WILL SPREAD OUT TO THE RIGHT AND THE LEFT; your descendants will possess the Nations and inhabit the desolate cities. DON'T BE AFRAID, for you won't be ashamed; DON'T BE DISCOURAGED, for you won't be disgraced. You will forget the shame of your youth, no longer remember your dishonor.
- I decree and declare the Lord SPEAKS POWERFULLY through His Servants whether in the written word or when speaking in public. The Lord is their STRENGTH and He is their GUIDE. The Servants of God do not advertise themselves as some of the people do. It is poor behavior to compare oneself to another.
- I decree and declare we will boast only about the WORK that the Lord/Adonai has given us to accomplish within our assigned area. We pray that your TRUST will grow as we MAGNIFY and PROCLAIM the Good News of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah in your midst and the Regions beyond. All who want to BOAST, LET THEM BOAST IN THE LORD/ADONAI!

I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, October 21, 2018]

Purpose

As You Sow, So Shall You Reap!

Ephesians 6:1-10; Acts 4:32-5:11; 2 Corinthians 9:6-14; Proverbs 10:9-17 (WEB)

Ephesians 6:1-10

Children, obey your parents in the Lord, for this is right. ² "Honor your father and mother," which is the first commandment with a promise: ³ "that it may be well with you, and you may live long on the earth." <u>Deuteronomy 5:16</u>

⁴ You fathers, don't provoke your children to wrath, but nurture them in the discipline and instruction of the Lord.

⁵ Servants, be obedient to those who according to the flesh are your masters, with fear and trembling, in singleness of your heart, as to Christ, ⁶ not in the way of service only when eyes are on you, as men pleasers, but as servants of Christ, doing the will of God from the heart, ⁷ with good will doing service as to the Lord, and not to men, ⁸knowing that whatever good thing each one does, he will receive the same good again from the Lord, whether he is bound or free.

⁹You masters, do the same things to them, and give up threatening, knowing that he who is both their Master and yours is in heaven, and there is no partiality with him.

¹⁰ Finally, be strong in the Lord, and in the strength of his might.

Acts 4:32-5:11

³² The multitude of those who believed were of one heart and soul. Not one of them claimed that anything of the things which he possessed was his own, but they had all things in common. ³³ With great power, the apostles gave their testimony of the resurrection of the Lord Jesus. Great grace was on them all. ³⁴ For neither was there among them any who lacked, for as many as were owners of lands or houses sold them, and brought the proceeds of the things that were sold, ³⁵ and laid them at the apostles' feet, and distribution was made to each, according as anyone had need. ³⁶ Joses, who by the apostles was also called Barnabas (which is, being interpreted, Son of Encouragement), a Levite, a man of Cyprus by race, ³⁷ having a field, sold it and brought the money and laid it at the apostles' feet.

¹ But a certain man named Ananias, with Sapphira, his wife, sold a possession, ² and kept back part of the price, his wife also being aware of it, then brought a certain part and laid it at the apostles' feet. ³ But Peter said, "Ananias, why has Satan filled your heart to lie to the Holy Spirit and to keep back part of the price of the land? ⁴ While you kept it, didn't it remain your own? After it was sold, wasn't it in your power? How is it that you have conceived this thing in your heart? You haven't lied to men, but to God."

⁵ Ananias, hearing these words, fell down and died. Great fear came on all who heard these things. ⁶ The young men arose and wrapped him up, and they carried him out and buried him. ⁷ About three hours later, his wife, not knowing what had happened, came in. ⁸ Peter answered her, "Tell me whether you sold the land for so much."

She said, "Yes, for so much."

⁹ But Peter asked her, "How is it that you have agreed together to tempt the Spirit of the Lord? Behold, the feet of those who have buried your husband are at the door, and they will carry you out."

¹⁰ She fell down immediately at his feet and died. The young men came in and found her dead, and they carried her out and buried her by her husband. ¹¹ Great fear came on the whole assembly, and on all who heard these things.

2 Corinthians 9:6-14

⁶ Remember this: he who sows sparingly will also reap sparingly. He who sows bountifully will also reap bountifully. ⁷ Let each man give according as he has determined in his heart, not grudgingly or under compulsion, for God loves a cheerful giver. ⁸ And God is able to make all grace abound to you, that you, always having all sufficiency in everything, may abound to every good work. ⁹ As it is written,

"He has scattered abroad. He has given to the poor. His righteousness remains forever." Psalm 112:9

¹⁰ Now may he who supplies seed to the sower and bread for food, supply and multiply your seed for sowing, and increase the fruits of your righteousness, ¹¹ you being enriched in everything to all generosity, which produces thanksgiving to God through us. ¹² For this service of giving that you perform not only makes up for lack among the saints, but abounds also through much giving of thanks to God, ¹³ seeing that through the proof given by this service, they glorify God for the obedience of your confession to the Good News of Christ and for the generosity of your contribution to them and to all, ¹⁴ while they themselves also, with supplication on your behalf, yearn for you by reason of the exceeding grace of God in you.

Proverbs 10:9-17

- ⁹He who walks blamelessly walks surely,
- but he who perverts his ways will be found out.
- ¹⁰One winking with the eye causes sorrow, but a chattering fool will fall.
- ¹¹ The mouth of the righteous is a spring of life, but violence covers the mouth of the wicked.
- ¹² Hatred stirs up strife,
 - but love covers all wrongs.
- ¹³Wisdom is found on the lips of him who has discernment,
- but a rod is for the back of him who is void of understanding.
- ¹⁴ Wise men lay up knowledge,
- but the mouth of the foolish is near ruin.
- ¹⁵ The rich man's wealth is his strong city.
- The destruction of the poor is their poverty.
- ¹⁶The labor of the righteous leads to life.
- The increase of the wicked leads to sin.
- ¹⁷ He is in the way of life who heeds correction, but he who forsakes reproof leads others astray.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms

to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare, as the Spirit/Ruach directs, I will RESTORE in a spirit of gentleness a person caught doing something wrong. I pray they have a tender, teachable spirit so they may repent and walk in TRUTH and INTEGRITY in the LIGHT of the Lord/Adonai.
- I decree and declare as we BEAR ONE ANOTHER'S BURDENS, we fulfill the Law/Torah of Christ/Messiah. Woe to those who think they are something when they are noting, for they are fooling themselves. Each one is to EXAMINE his own work and allow the Spirit/Ruach to EXAMINE his heart.
- I decree and declare GOD IS NOT MOCKED! Do not be deceived for whatever a man sows, that will he also reap. For if you sow in the flesh, you will reap corruption from the flesh. But if you SOW IN THE SPIRIT/RUACH you will reap from the Spirit/Ruach ETERNAL LIFE. So do not lose heart in doing good, for in due time you will reap if you don't give up. Whenever you have the opportunity, do good toward all especial those who belong to the household of faith.
- I decree and declare the TRUE BELIEVERS are those who are one in heart and mind. They are GENEROUS with one another; they do not covet but share as there is a need. As the teachings and witness of the RESURRECTION of the Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua goes forth, ABUNDANT FAVOR rests upon each of you.
- I decree and declare the Spirit/Ruach knows the INTENT of your actions. Do not think you can lie and hide your actions from men and that is the end of it. Ultimately, know that when you lie, when you have ulterior motives, couched in the Christian ministry, that YOUR ACTIONS WILL NOT GO UNDISCOVERED. As was spoken in Acts, "Why has satan filled your heart to lie to the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh?" When you rob from ministers and give a false accounting, it is not only against them, but the Spirit/Ruach that you are lying.
- I decree and declare those who SOW BOUNTIFULLY will also REAP BOUNTIFULLY, yet those who sow sparingly will also reap sparingly. God/Elohim keeps records of what and how you give. Give as you have decided in your heart, not grudgingly or under compulsion for GOD LOVES A CHEERFUL GIVER and He is able to make ALL GRACE OVERFLOW to you, so that by always having enough of everything, you may OVERFLOW IN EVERY GOOD WORK.
- I decree and declare the One True God, Who SUPPLIES seed to the sower and bread for food, will SUPPLY and MULTIPLY your seed and increase the Harvest of your RIGHTEOUSNESS. You will be ENRICHED in everything for all generosity which brings about THANKSGIVING to God/Elohim. For the Service of giving is not only supplying the needs of the saints/Kedoshim, but is also overflowing with many THANKSGIVINGS to God/Elohim!
- I decree and declare you who WALK IN INTEGRITY, WALK SECURELY, but the one who takes crooked paths will be DISCOVERED. The one who winks an eye maliciously causes grief, while a babbling fool comes to ruin.

- I decree and declare the mouth of the RIGHTEOUS is a FOUNTAIN of LIFE, but the mouth of the wicked conceals violence. Hatred stirs up strife, but LOVE COVERS up all transgressions.
 WISDOM is on the lips of the DISCERNING and WISE men store up knowledge, but the mouth of a fool is near ruin. THE WAGES OF THE RIGHTEOUS ARE LIFE. The income of the wicked is sin.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 16, 2020]

I Live My Life to Praise!

Psalm 150:1-6; Deuteronomy 10:16-22; Isaiah 42:10-13; 57:15-19; Hebrews 13:15-16 (WEB)

Psalm 150:1-6

Praise Yah! Praise God in his sanctuary! Praise him in his heavens for his acts of power! ² Praise him for his mighty acts! Praise him according to his excellent greatness! ³ Praise him with the sounding of the trumpet! Praise him with harp and lyre! ⁴ Praise him with tambourine and dancing! Praise him with stringed instruments and flute! ⁵ Praise him with loud cymbals! Praise him with resounding cymbals! ⁶ Let everything that has breath praise Yah! Praise Yah!

Deuteronomy 10:16-22

¹⁶ Circumcise therefore the foreskin of your heart, and be no more stiff-necked. ¹⁷ For Yahweh your God, he is God of gods and Lord of lords, the great God, the mighty, and the awesome, who doesn't respect persons or take bribes. ¹⁸ He executes justice for the fatherless and widow and loves the foreigner in giving him food and clothing. ¹⁹ Therefore love the foreigner, for you were foreigners in the land of Egypt. ²⁰ You shall fear Yahweh your God. You shall serve him. You shall cling to him, and you shall swear by his name. ²¹ He is your praise, and he is your God, who has done for you these great and awesome things which your eyes have seen. ²² Your fathers went down into Egypt with seventy persons; and now Yahweh your God has made you as the stars of the sky for multitude.

Isaiah 42:10-13

¹⁰ Sing to Yahweh a new song, and his praise from the end of the earth, you who go down to the sea, and all that is therein, the islands and their inhabitants.

¹¹ Let the wilderness and its cities raise their voices, with the villages that Kedar inhabits. Let the inhabitants of Sela sing.

Let them shout from the top of the mountains!

¹² Let them give glory to Yahweh, and declare his praise in the islands.

¹³ Yahweh will go out like a mighty man.
He will stir up zeal like a man of war.
He will raise a war cry.

Yes, he will shout aloud.

He will triumph over his enemies.

Isaiah 57:15-19

- ¹⁵ For the high and lofty One who inhabits eternity, whose name is Holy, says:
- "I dwell in the high and holy place, with him also who is of a contrite and humble spirit, to revive the spirit of the humble,

and to revive the heart of the contrite.

- ¹⁶ For I will not contend forever, neither will I always be angry; for the spirit would faint before me, and the souls whom I have made.
- ¹⁷ I was angry because of the iniquity of his covetousness and struck him. I hid myself and was angry;

and he went on backsliding in the way of his heart.

¹⁸I have seen his ways, and will heal him.

I will lead him also,

and restore comforts to him and to his mourners.

¹⁹I create the fruit of the lips:

Peace, peace, to him who is far off and to him who is near," says Yahweh; "and I will heal them."

Hebrews 13:15-16

¹⁵ Through him, then, let's offer up a sacrifice of praise to God <u>Psalm 50:23</u> continually, that is, the fruit of lips which proclaim allegiance to his name. ¹⁶ But don't forget to be doing good and sharing, for with such sacrifices God is well pleased.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare HALLELUYAH! I will FOREVER PRAISE YOU, God Almighty/El Shaddai, in Your Sanctuary! I will Praise You in Your MIGHTY EXPANSE. I PRAISE You for Your ACTS of POWER and for Your ENORMOUS GREATNESS!
- I decree and declare I PRAISE You, God Most High/El'Elyon, with the BLAST of the SHOFAR! I PRAISE You on stringed instruments and with TAMBOURINE and DANCE! Let Everything that has BREATH PRAISE the Lord/Adonai. HALLELUYAH!
- I decree and declare the Lord my God/Adonai Elohei is God of gods and Lord of lords the GREAT, MIGHTY and AWESOME GOD/ELOHIM, Who does not show partiality or take a bribe. My heart will not grow arrogant and I will not be stiff-necked toward the Lord/Adonai, rather I am receiving of correction and PLIABLE in the Potter's Hands.
- I decree and declare God/Elohim enacts JUSTICE for the Orphan and Widow, and LOVES the Outsider, giving him Food and Clothing. I will love and welcome the Outsider, as I was once an Outsider myself.

- I decree and declare I FEAR the Lord my God/Adonai Elohei and SERVE Him only. He has done AWESOME and GREAT things that my eyes have seen. I BLESS Him ALWAYS for His ENDLESS LOVE, MERCY and GRACE by which He has CALLED ME HIS OWN TREASURED POSSESSION.
- I decree and declare I SING to the Lord/Adonai a NEW SONG, His PRAISE from the End of the Earth, from the SEA with all of its fullness, ISLANDS and their inhabitants! The Whole EARTH is SEEING His GLORY!
- I decree and declare the Desert and its Cities are EXULTING the Villages and their inhabitants. The Dwellers are SINGING for JOY. They SHOUT for JOY from the tops of the Mountains! The are giving GLORY to the Lord/Adonai and declaring His PRAISE in the Islands!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai GOES OUT as a Mighty One, He STIRS UP His zeal like a Man of War. He SHOUTS "YES," raises a WAR CRY! He PREVAILS OVER HIS ENEMIES!
- I decree and declare the High and Exalted One, Who INHABITS Eternity, Whose Name is HOLY/KADOSH, says "I dwell in a high and holy place, yet also with a CONTRITE and HUMBLE Spirit, to REVIVE the spirit of the Humble, and REVIVE the Heart of the Contrite!"
- I decree and declare God/Elohim has seen your ways and He will HEAL you. He will LEAD you and RESTORE COMFORT to you and your mourners. He is CREATING the PRAISE on your lips, "Peace, Peace/Shalom, Shalom to you who are far and near, and He will HEAL YOU!"
- I decree and declare through Jesus/Yeshua I CONTINUALLY offer up to God/Elohim a SACRIFICE OF PRAISE – the fruit of my lips giving THANKS to His Name. I will not neglect doing GOOD and sharing for with these SACRIFICES God is well PLEASED!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, April 21, 2019]

I Am Calling Forth Riches Hidden in Secret Places!

Proverbs 13:21-22; Isaiah 45:1-8; Deuteronomy 8:11-18; Matthew 6:6-13 (WEB)

Proverbs 13:21-22

²¹ Misfortune pursues sinners, but prosperity rewards the righteous. ²² A good man leaves an inheritance to his children's children, but the wealth of the sinner is stored for the righteous.

Isaiah 45:1-8

¹Yahweh says to his anointed, to Cyrus, whose right hand I have held, to subdue nations before him, and strip kings of their armor; to open the doors before him, and the gates shall not be shut: ² "I will go before you and make the rough places smooth. I will break the doors of bronze in pieces and cut apart the bars of iron. ³ I will give you the treasures of darkness and hidden riches of secret places, that you may know that it is I, Yahweh, who calls you by your name, even the God of Israel. ⁴ For Jacob my servant's sake, and Israel my chosen, I have called you by your name. I have given you a title, though you have not known me. ⁵ I am Yahweh, and there is no one else. Besides me, there is no God. I will strengthen you, though you have not known me, ⁶ that they may know from the rising of the sun, and from the west, that there is no one besides me. I am Yahweh, and there is no one else. ⁷ I form the light and create darkness. I make peace and create calamity. I am Yahweh, who does all these things.

⁸ Rain, you heavens, from above, and let the skies pour down righteousness. Let the earth open, that it may produce salvation, and let it cause righteousness to spring up with it. I, Yahweh, have created it.

Deuteronomy 8:11-18

¹¹ Beware lest you forget Yahweh your God, in not keeping his commandments, his ordinances, and his statutes, which I command you today; ¹² lest, when you have eaten and are full, and have built fine houses and lived in them; ¹³ and when your herds and your flocks multiply, and your silver and your gold is multiplied, and all that you have is multiplied; ¹⁴ then your heart might be lifted up, and you forget Yahweh your God, who brought you out of the land of Egypt, out of the house of bondage; ¹⁵ who led you through the great and terrible wilderness, with venomous snakes and scorpions, and thirsty ground where there was no water; who poured water for you out of the rock of flint; ¹⁶ who fed you in the wilderness with manna, which your fathers didn't know, that he might humble you, and that he might prove you, to do you good at your latter end; ¹⁷ and lest you say in your heart, "My power and the might of my hand has gotten me this wealth." ¹⁸ But you shall remember Yahweh your God, for it is he who gives you power to get wealth, that he may establish his covenant which he swore to your fathers, as it is today.

Matthew 6:6-13

⁶ But you, when you pray, enter into your inner room, and having shut your door, pray to your Father who is in secret; and your Father who sees in secret will reward you openly. ⁷ In praying, don't use vain repetitions as the Gentiles do; for they think that they will be heard for their much speaking. ⁸ Therefore don't be like them, for your Father knows what things you need before you ask him. ⁹ Pray like this: "'Our Father in heaven, may your name be kept holy. ¹⁰ Let your Kingdom come. Let your will be done on earth as it is in heaven. ¹¹ Give us today our daily bread. ¹² Forgive us our debts, as we also forgive our debtors. ¹³ Bring us not into temptation, but deliver us from the evil one. For yours is the Kingdom, the power, and the glory forever. Amen.'

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare PROSPERITY REWARDS the RIGHTEOUS and a sinner's WEALTH is stored up and is being RELEASED to the RIGHTEOUS! We speak it and declare it! We claim it in Jesus'/Yeshua's mighty Name!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai has GRASPED MY RIGHT HAND, to SUBDUE NATIONS before me, to LOOSE the Belts of Kings, to OPEN DOORS before me so that Gates will not be shut. He goes before me and is making all crooked places STRAIGHT. He will SHATTER BRONZE DOORS and cut through iron bars!
- I decree and declare God/Elohim says, "I will give you TREASURES of darkness and HIDDEN RICHES of secret places – places covered beneath rubble, hidden in the ocean depths – so that you will know that I am the Lord God/Adonai Elohim of Israel, Who calls you by your name!"
- I decree and declare God Almighty/El Shaddai is my STRENGTH, He is my GUIDE in all I do. Without His leading, I will not go. With His LEADING I CANNOT FAIL! All who witness His work in my life will know, from the rising to the setting of the sun, there is no one beside the Lord/Adonai!
- I decree and declare I WILL NOT FORGET THE LORD MY GOD/ADONAI ELOHAI; I will obey His Commandments – His Word by the strength of the Spirit/Ruach. I know that all I am and all I have is by His MERCY and GRACE.
- I decree and declare I will REMEMBER the Lord My God/Adonai Elohai, for it is He Who gives me POWER to make WEALTH, in order to ESTABLISH His Covenant that He swore to His People!
- I decree and declare that I PRAY in my private place; and what I say in privacy is HEARD and SEEN by my Father/Abba in Heaven! He shall REWARD me. The Lord/Adonai does not care for lengthy prayers like the pagans who babble on. But He knows the Heart; He knows WHAT YOU NEED BEFORE YOU ASK HIM!
- I decree and declare our Father is in HEAVEN; His Name is BLESSED! His Kingdom is NOW, and it is COMING to Earth: His will is being DONE ON EARTH AS IT IS IN HEAVEN. He gives us PROVISION for our daily needs. He has forgiven us our debts as we have also forgiven our debtors. He does not lead us into temptation but DELIVERS US FROM THE EVIL ONE!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, November 9, 2019]

Speak God's Promises & Shift the Atmosphere!

Deuteronomy 11:8-17; Colossians 1:9-12; Hebrews 12:10-14, 22-29; 2 Peter 1:3-11 (WEB)

Deuteronomy 11:8-17

⁸Therefore you shall keep the entire commandment which I command you today, that you may be strong, and go in and possess the land that you go over to possess; ⁹ and that you may prolong your days in the land which Yahweh swore to your fathers to give to them and to their offspring, a land flowing with milk and honey. ¹⁰ For the land, where you go in to possess isn't like the land of Egypt that you came out of, where you sowed your seed and watered it with your foot, as a garden of herbs; ¹¹ but the land that you go over to possess is a land of hills and valleys which drinks water from the rain of the sky, ¹² a land which Yahweh your God cares for. Yahweh your God's eyes are always on it, from the beginning of the year even to the end of the year. ¹³ It shall happen, if you shall listen diligently to my commandments which I command you today, to love Yahweh your God, and to serve him with all your heart and with all your soul, ¹⁴ that I will give the rain for your land in its season, the early rain and the latter rain, that you may gather in your grain, your new wine, and your oil. ¹⁵ I will give grass in your fields for your livestock, and you shall eat and be full. ¹⁶ Be careful, lest your heart be deceived, and you turn away to serve other gods and worship them; ¹⁷ and Yahweh's anger be kindled against you, and he shut up the sky so that there is no rain, and the land doesn't yield its fruit; and you perish quickly from off the good land which Yahweh gives you.

Colossians 1:9-12

⁹ For this cause, we also, since the day we heard this, don't cease praying and making requests for you, that you may be filled with the knowledge of his will in all spiritual wisdom and understanding, ¹⁰ that you may walk worthily of the Lord, to please him in all respects, bearing fruit in every good work and increasing in the knowledge of God, ¹¹ strengthened with all power, according to the might of his glory, for all endurance and perseverance with joy, ¹² giving thanks to the Father, who made us fit to be partakers of the inheritance of the saints in light,

Hebrews 12:10-14, 22-29

¹⁰ For they indeed, for a few days, punished us as seemed good to them; but he for our profit, that we may be partakers of his holiness. ¹¹ All chastening seems for the present to be not joyous but grievous; yet afterward it yields the peaceful fruit of righteousness to those who have been trained by it. ¹² Therefore lift up the hands that hang down and the feeble knees, [Isaiah 35:3] ¹³ and make straight paths for your feet, [Proverbs 4:26] so what is lame may not be dislocated, but rather be healed.

¹⁴ Follow after peace with all men, and the sanctification without which no man will see the Lord,...

²² But you have come to Mount Zion, and to the city of the living God, the heavenly Jerusalem, and to innumerable multitudes of angels, ²³ to the festal gathering and assembly of the firstborn who are enrolled in heaven, to God the Judge of all, to the spirits of just men made perfect, ²⁴ to Jesus, the mediator of a new covenant, [Jeremiah 31:31] and to the blood of sprinkling that speaks better than that of Abel.

²⁵ See that you don't refuse him who speaks. For if they didn't escape when they refused him who warned on the earth, how much more will we not escape who turn away from him who warns from heaven, ²⁶ whose voice shook the earth then, but now he has promised, saying, "Yet once more I will

shake not only the earth, but also the heavens." [Haggai 2:6] ²⁷ This phrase, "Yet once more" signifies the removing of those things that are shaken, as of things that have been made, that those things which are not shaken may remain. ²⁸ Therefore, receiving a Kingdom that can't be shaken, let's have grace, through which we serve God acceptably, with reverence and awe, ²⁹ for our God is a consuming fire. [Deuteronomy 4:24]

2 Peter 1:3-11

³ seeing that his divine power has granted to us all things that pertain to life and godliness, through the knowledge of him who called us by his own glory and virtue, ⁴ by which he has granted to us his precious and exceedingly great promises; that through these you may become partakers of the divine nature, having escaped from the corruption that is in the world by lust. ⁵ Yes, and for this very cause adding on your part all diligence, in your faith supply moral excellence; and in moral excellence, knowledge; ⁶ and in knowledge, self-control; and in self-control perseverance; and in perseverance godliness; ⁷ and in godliness brotherly affection; and in brotherly affection, love. ⁸ For if these things are yours and abound, they make you to not be idle or unfruitful in the knowledge of our Lord Jesus Christ. ⁹ For he who lacks these things is blind, seeing only what is near, having forgotten the cleansing from his old sins. ¹⁰ Therefore, brothers, be more diligent to make your calling and election sure. For if you do these things, you will never stumble. ¹¹ For thus you will be richly supplied with the entrance into the eternal Kingdom of our Lord and Savior, Jesus Christ.

- I declare I will OBEY the Word of God/Elohim, so that I will be STRONG and GO IN and POSSESS the LAND! Obedience will PROLONG MY DAYS on the Land that the Lord has sworn to give to me and my ancestors – a Land FLOWING WITH MILK AND HONEY!
- I decree and declare the Land of the Lord's PROMISE is a PROSPEROUS AND FERTILE LAND. It is a Land of Hills and Valleys, DRINKING FROM THE RAIN OF THE HEAVENS! It is a Land that the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheykha CARES for – the Eyes of the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheykha are ALWAYS on it!
- I decree and declare if you LISTEN OBEDIENTLY to the Commandments of the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai – to LOVE the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheykha and to SERVE HIM with ALL YOUR HEART and SOUL – then He will give Rain for your Land in its season – the EARLY RAIN and the LATE RAIN – so that you may gather in your grain, new wine and olive oil!
- I decree and declare I will watch my heart so that I am not deceived; I will not turn aside and serve other gods and worship them. LIFE IS IN CHRIST JESUS/MESSIAH YESHUA ALONE! There is no TRUTH but the TRUTH of God Almighty/El Shaddai as He has given in the Scriptures and through His Holy Spirit. I LIVE FOR THE ONE TRUE GOD, Father, Son and Holy Spirit, and Him ONLY will I serve!
- I decree and declare God will FILL YOU WITH KNOWLEDGE OF HIS WILL IN ALL WISDOM and SPIRITUAL UNDERSTANDING – so you will walk in a manner worthy of the Lord/Adonai to

PLEASE HIM IN ALL RESPECTS, BEARING FRUIT in every good work and GROWING in the knowledge of God/Elohim!

- I decree and declare you will be STRENGTHENED WITH ALL THE POWER that comes from God's/Elohim's GLORIOUS MIGHT, for you to have all kinds of PATIENCE and STEADFASTNESS. With JOY, I give THANKS to the Father, who QUALIFIED YOU to share in the INHERITANCE of the Saints/Kedoshim in the LIGHT!
- I decree and declare the Father God/Abba Elohim DISCIPLINES us for our BENEFIT, so that we may SHARE IN HIS HOLINESS. His DISCIPLINE yields the PEACEFUL FRUIT of RIGHTEOUSNESS to those who have been TRAINED by it!
- I decree and declare I will STRENGTHEN THE HANDS THAT ARE WEEK and the knees that are feeble. I will make STRAIGHT PATHS for my feet, so that what is lame will not be pulled out of joint, but rather be HEALED! I PURSUE PEACE/SHALOM with everyone and the HOLINESS without which no one will see the Lord.
- I decree and declare we have COME TO MOUNT ZION/TZIYON—to the City of the Living God/Elohim, the HEAVENLY JERUSALEM/YERUSHALAYIM, and to MYRIADS of Angels, a Joyous Gathering, and to the ASSEMBLY of the Firstborn who are WRITTEN in a SCROLL in Heaven, and to God/Elohim the Judge of all, and to the spirits of the RIGHTEOUS ONES MADE PERFECT, AND to Jesus/Yeshua the Mediator of a New Covenant, and to the Sprinkled Blood that SPEAKS OF SOMETHING BETTER than the blood of Abel.
- I declare I will not refuse the One Who is SPEAKING! For His VOICE will SHAKE the EARTH, but also the HEAVENS. All things that can be shaken will be REMOVED that is, created things so that WHAT CANNOT BE SHAKEN MAY REMAIN! We are receiving a KINGDOM that cannot be shaken. I will show gratitude through WORSHIP in a manner pleasing to God, with REVERENCE and AWE! FOR OUR GOD/ELOHEINU IS A CONSUMING FIRE!
- I decree and declare Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, through His Divine POWER, has given us EVERYTHING we need for Life and GODLINESS, through the knowledge of Him Who CALLED US by His Own GLORY and VIRTUE. Through these things He has given us His PRECIOUS and MAGNIFICENT PROMISES, so that through them we may become PARTAKERS OF THE DIVINE NATURE, since we have escaped the corruption that evil desires have brought into the world.
- I decree and declare I am INCREASING IN THESE GODLY QUALITIES: faith, virtue, knowledge, self-control, patience, godliness, brotherly love and LOVE. For as these qualities are in me and INCREASING, they will KEEP me from becoming idle and unfruitful in the knowledge of our Lord Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, October 10, 2019]

God is Directing His Strong & Bold Warriors to Pray During the Night Watch!

Psalm 91:1-16; Acts 16:25-34; Luke 11:1-13 (WEB)

Psalm 91:1-16

He who dwells in the secret place of the Most High will rest in the shadow of the Almighty.

² I will say of Yahweh, "He is my refuge and my fortress; my God, in whom I trust."

³ For he will deliver you from the snare of the fowler, and from the deadly pestilence.

⁴ He will cover you with his feathers.
 Under his wings you will take refuge.
 His faithfulness is your shield and rampart.

⁵ You shall not be afraid of the terror by night, nor of the arrow that flies by day,

⁶ nor of the pestilence that walks in darkness, nor of the destruction that wastes at noonday.

⁷ A thousand may fall at your side, and ten thousand at your right hand; but it will not come near you.

- ⁸You will only look with your eyes, and see the recompense of the wicked.
- ⁹ Because you have made Yahweh your refuge, and the Most High your dwelling place,
- ¹⁰ no evil shall happen to you, neither shall any plague come near your dwelling.
- ¹¹ For he will put his angels in charge of you,
 - to guard you in all your ways.
- ¹² They will bear you up in their hands,
 - so that you won't dash your foot against a stone.
- ¹³ You will tread on the lion and cobra.
- You will trample the young lion and the serpent underfoot.
- ¹⁴ "Because he has set his love on me, therefore I will deliver him.
- I will set him on high, because he has known my name.
- ¹⁵ He will call on me, and I will answer him.
 - I will be with him in trouble.

I will deliver him, and honor him.

¹⁶ I will satisfy him with long life, and show him my salvation."

Acts 16:25-34

²⁵ But about midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God, and the prisoners were listening to them. ²⁶ Suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken; and immediately all the doors were opened, and everyone's bonds were loosened. ²⁷ The jailer, being roused out of sleep and seeing the prison doors open, drew his sword and was about to kill

himself, supposing that the prisoners had escaped. ²⁸ But Paul cried with a loud voice, saying, "Don't harm yourself, for we are all here!"

²⁹ He called for lights, sprang in, fell down trembling before Paul and Silas, ³⁰ brought them out, and said, "Sirs, what must I do to be saved?"

³¹They said, "Believe in the Lord Jesus Christ, and you will be saved, you and your household." ³²They spoke the word of the Lord to him, and to all who were in his house.

³³ He took them the same hour of the night and washed their stripes, and was immediately baptized, he and all his household. ³⁴ He brought them up into his house, and set food before them, and rejoiced greatly, with all his household, having believed in God.

Luke 11:1-13

When he finished praying in a certain place, one of his disciples said to him, "Lord, teach us to pray, just as John also taught his disciples."

²He said to them, "When you pray, say,

'Our Father in heaven,

may your name be kept holy.

May your Kingdom come.

May your will be done on earth, as it is in heaven.

³Give us day by day our daily bread.

⁴ Forgive us our sins,

for we ourselves also forgive everyone who is indebted to us.

Bring us not into temptation,

but deliver us from the evil one.""

⁵ He said to them, "Which of you, if you go to a friend at midnight, and tell him, 'Friend, lend me three loaves of bread, ⁶ for a friend of mine has come to me from a journey, and I have nothing to set before him,' ⁷ and he from within will answer and say, 'Don't bother me. The door is now shut, and my children are with me in bed. I can't get up and give it to you'? ⁸I tell you, although he will not rise and give it to him because he is his friend, yet because of his persistence, he will get up and give him as many as he needs.

⁹ "I tell you, keep asking, and it will be given you. Keep seeking, and you will find. Keep knocking, and it will be opened to you. ¹⁰ For everyone who asks receives. He who seeks finds. To him who knocks it will be opened.

¹¹ "Which of you fathers, if your son asks for bread, will give him a stone? Or if he asks for a fish, he won't give him a snake instead of a fish, will he? ¹² Or if he asks for an egg, he won't give him a scorpion, will he? ¹³ If you then, being evil, know how to give good gifts to your children, how much more will your heavenly Father give the Holy Spirit to those who ask him?"

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms

to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- DI decree and declare you are the STRONG and BOLD Warriors of the Most High/'Elyon who live in His Shelter; you SPEND YOUR NIGHTS in PRAYER in the Shadow of the Almighty/Shaddai! You call unto the Lord/Adonai, "My REFUGE! My FORTRESS! My GOD/ELOHAI in Whom I TRUST!
- I decree and declare, DURING the NIGHT WATCH, the Lord/Adonai RESCUES you from the trap of the hunter and from the plague of calamities; HE COVERS YOU with His pinions, and under His WINGS you will find REFUGE; His TRUTH is a Shield and PROTECTION!
- I decree and declare the Lord is PROTECTING you, and those you lift in PRAYER, during the Night Watch. You will not fear the terrors of Night or the arrow that flies by day, or the plague that roams in the dark, or the scourge that wreaks havoc at noon!
- I decree and declare you have made the Lord/Adonai, the Most High/'Elyon your DWELLING PLACE. No disaster will happen to you, no calamity will come near your tent; for He has ordered His Angels to CARE for you and GUARD you wherever you are, ALWAYS. They carry you in their hands, so that you won't stumble.
- I decree and declare, during your PRAYER TIMES and during your daytime walk, you will TREAD DOWN lions and snakes, young lions and serpents: all forms of demonic powers – you will TRAMPLE them UNDERFOOT! The Lord/Adonai RESCUES you because you LOVE Him and you KNOW His Name!
- I decree and declare FREEDOM and RELEASE are coming in the Midnight Hour! The Lord is ANOINTING and EMPOWERING His Word and His People to break the STRONGHOLDS in families, regions and Nations, in the Night.
- I decree and declare the PRAYERS spoken in the Night will RESULT in the SALVATION of Multitudes! Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh is ministering and drawing Households, Families and Nations to the Lord!
- I decree and declare you PRAY always, keeping the Name of the Father God/Abba Elohim HOLY. Your SIGHT is on His Kingdom coming to Earth; your WORDS are BREAKING THROUGH the Atmosphere to bring it to pass.
- I decree and declare I come before the Father/Abba in REPENTANCE and walk in FORGIVENESS towards all who have wronged me. God/Elohim will not lead me into temptation or hard testing. I am able to RISE above all CHALLENGES and DIFFICULTIES for He is with me and His Angels encircle me; He is my STRONG TOWER!
- I decree and declare to you: KEEP ASKING, and it will be given to you; KEEP SEEKING, and you will FIND; KEEP KNOCKING, and the DOOR will be opened to you. For Everyone who goes on asking RECEIVES; and he who goes on seeking FINDS; and to him who continues knocking, the

DOOR will be OPENED! The Father/Abba will keep giving Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh from Heaven to those who keep asking Him!

I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 15, 2019]

Strength

I Am Encouraged – I Will Rejoice!

2 Corinthians 1:3-14; 7:1-7, 12-16; 1 Thessalonians 5:8-24; Romans 15:1-6; Ephesians 3:8-21 (WEB)

2 Corinthians 1:3-14

³ Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, the Father of mercies and God of all comfort; ⁴ who comforts us in all our affliction, that we may be able to comfort those who are in any affliction, through the comfort with which we ourselves are comforted by God. ⁵ For as the sufferings of Christ abound to us, even so our comfort also abounds through Christ. ⁶ But if we are afflicted, it is for your comfort and salvation. If we are comforted, it is for your comfort, which produces in you the patient enduring of the same sufferings which we also suffer. ⁷ Our hope for you is steadfast, knowing that, since you are partakers of the sufferings, so you are also of the comfort. ⁸ For we don't desire to have you uninformed, brothers, ^[a] concerning our affliction which happened to us in Asia, that we were weighed down exceedingly, beyond our power, so much that we despaired even of life. ⁹ Yes, we ourselves have had the sentence of death within ourselves, that we should not trust in ourselves, but in God who raises the dead, ¹⁰ who delivered us out of so great a death, and does deliver; on whom we have set our hope that he will also still deliver us; ¹¹ you also helping together on our behalf by your supplication; that, for the gift given to us by means of many, thanks may be given by many persons on your behalf.

¹² For our boasting is this: the testimony of our conscience, that in holiness and sincerity of God, not in fleshly wisdom but in the grace of God we behaved ourselves in the world, and more abundantly toward you. ¹³ For we write no other things to you than what you read or even acknowledge, and I hope you will acknowledge to the end, ¹⁴ as also you acknowledged us in part, that we are your boasting, even as you also are ours, in the day of our Lord Jesus.

2 Corinthians 7:1-7, 12-16

Having therefore these promises, beloved, let's cleanse ourselves from all defilement of flesh and spirit, perfecting holiness in the fear of God.

² Open your hearts to us. We wronged no one. We corrupted no one. We took advantage of no one. ³ I say this not to condemn you, for I have said before that you are in our hearts to die together and live together. ⁴ Great is my boldness of speech toward you. Great is my boasting on your behalf. I am filled with comfort. I overflow with joy in all our affliction.

⁵ For even when we had come into Macedonia, our flesh had no relief, but we were afflicted on every side. Fightings were outside. Fear was inside. ⁶ Nevertheless, he who comforts the lowly, God, comforted us by the coming of Titus, ⁷ and not by his coming only, but also by the comfort with which he was comforted in you while he told us of your longing, your mourning, and your zeal for me, so that I rejoiced still more. ...

¹² So although I wrote to you, I wrote not for his cause that did the wrong, nor for his cause that suffered the wrong, but that your earnest care for us might be revealed in you in the sight of God. ¹³ Therefore we have been comforted. In our comfort we rejoiced the more exceedingly for the joy of Titus, because his spirit has been refreshed by you all. ¹⁴ For if in anything I have boasted to him on your behalf, I was not disappointed. But as we spoke all things to you in truth, so our glorying also which I made before Titus was found to be truth. ¹⁵ His affection is more abundantly toward you, while he remembers all of

your obedience, how with fear and trembling you received him. ¹⁶ I rejoice that in everything I am confident concerning you.

1 Thessalonians 5:8-24

⁸ But since we belong to the day, let's be sober, putting on the breastplate of faith and love, and for a helmet, the hope of salvation. ⁹ For God didn't appoint us to wrath, but to the obtaining of salvation through our Lord Jesus Christ, ¹⁰ who died for us, that, whether we wake or sleep, we should live together with him. ¹¹ Therefore exhort one another, and build each other up, even as you also do. ¹² But we beg you, brothers, to know those who labor among you, and are over you in the Lord, and admonish you, ¹³ and to respect and honor them in love for their work's sake.

Be at peace among yourselves. ¹⁴ We exhort you, brothers: Admonish the disorderly; encourage the faint-hearted; support the weak; be patient toward all. ¹⁵ See that no one returns evil for evil to anyone, but always follow after that which is good for one another and for all.

¹⁶ Always rejoice. ¹⁷ Pray without ceasing. ¹⁸ In everything give thanks, for this is the will of God in Christ Jesus toward you. ¹⁹ Don't quench the Spirit. ²⁰ Don't despise prophecies. ²¹ Test all things, and hold firmly that which is good. ²² Abstain from every form of evil.

²³ May the God of peace himself sanctify you completely. May your whole spirit, soul, and body be preserved blameless at the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ.

²⁴ He who calls you is faithful, who will also do it.

Romans 15:1-6

Now we who are strong ought to bear the weaknesses of the weak, and not to please ourselves. ² Let each one of us please his neighbor for that which is good, to be building him up. ³ For even Christ didn't please himself. But, as it is written, "The reproaches of those who reproached you fell on me." <u>Psalm</u> 69:9 ⁴ For whatever things were written before were written for our learning, that through perseverance and through encouragement of the Scriptures we might have hope. ⁵ Now the God of perseverance and of encouragement grant you to be of the same mind with one another according to Christ Jesus, ⁶ that with one accord you may with one mouth glorify the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ.

Ephesians 3:8-21

⁸To me, the very least of all saints, was this grace given, to preach to the Gentiles the unsearchable riches of Christ, ⁹ and to make all men see what is the administration of the mystery which for ages has been hidden in God, who created all things through Jesus Christ, ¹⁰ to the intent that now through the assembly the manifold wisdom of God might be made known to the principalities and the powers in the heavenly places, ¹¹ according to the eternal purpose which he accomplished in Christ Jesus our Lord. ¹² In him we have boldness and access in confidence through our faith in him. ¹³ Therefore I ask that you may not lose heart at my troubles for you, which are your glory.

¹⁴ For this cause, I bow my knees to the Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, ¹⁵ from whom every family in heaven and on earth is named, ¹⁶ that he would grant you, according to the riches of his glory, that you may be strengthened with power through his Spirit in the inner person, ¹⁷ that Christ may dwell in your hearts through faith, to the end that you, being rooted and grounded in love, ¹⁸ may be strengthened to comprehend with all the saints what is the width and length and height and depth, ¹⁹ and to know Christ's love which surpasses knowledge, that you may be filled with all the fullness of God.

²⁰ Now to him who is able to do exceedingly abundantly above all that we ask or think, according to the power that works in us, ²¹ to him be the glory in the assembly and in Christ Jesus to all generations forever and ever. Amen.

- DI decree and declare BLESSED is the God/Elohim and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah, the Father of COMPASSION and God/Elohim of ALL ENCOURAGEMENT! He ENCOURAGES US IN EVERY TROUBLE, so that we are able to ENCOURAGE those who are in any trouble, through the very encouragement with which we ourselves are encouraged by God/Elohim.
- I decree and declare, as the SUFFERINGS of Christ/Messiah overflow into us, so also through Christ/Messiah our ENCOURAGEMENT OVERFLOWS. If we are suffering hardship, it is for your ENCOURAGEMENT and SALVATION. And if we are ENCOURAGED, it is for your encouragement, which produces in you the PATIENT ENDURANCE of the same sufferings that we also suffer.
- I decree and declare, though we are under great pressure so far beyond our strength that we despair even of living, WE HAVE HOPE. When we have within ourselves the death sentence so that we might not rely on ourselves, WE RELY ON GOD/ELOHIM WHO RAISES THE DEAD. He Who rescues us from the great danger of death will continue to RESCUE us we have set our HOPE on Him that He will RESCUE us again.
- I decree and declare YOU ARE HELPING BY YOUR PRAYER FOR US, so that from many People thanks may be given on our behalf for the Gracious GIFT given us through the help of many. We behave in the World with simplicity and godly SINCERITY – not by Human Wisdom but by the GRACE OF GOD/ELOHIM.
- I decree and declare, since I have the PROMISES of Christ/Messiah, I CLEANSE myself daily from all defilement of the body and spirit, PERFECTING HOLINESS IN THE FEAR OF GOD/ELOHIM. Because of you I am filled with ENCOURAGEMENT and I overflow with JOY in all my troubles. Though I find no rest and am hard pressed on every side – conflicts outside, fears within; yet GOD/ELOHIM, Who ENCOURAGES the downcast, ENCOURAGES me by His People.
- I decree and declare by your DILIGENCE I am ENCOURAGED! As you REFRESH others I am ENCOURAGED! My feelings overflow when I remember your OBEDIENCE – how you receive His leaders with FEAR and TREMBLING. I REJOICE that in everything I have confidence in you.
- I decree and declare I AM OF THE DAY sober minded WEARING THE BREASTPLATE OF FAITHFULNESS AND LOVE, AND THE HOPE OF SALVATION AS A HELMET! For God did not destine me for wrath but for obtaining Salvation through our Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah! Therefore, I will encourage my Brothers and Sisters and BUILD THEM UP!

- I decree and declare I will stand STRONG, yet HUMBLE. I will recognize those who work hard among the Believers and my congregation and are over me in the Lord/Adonai. I will ESTEEM them beyond all measure in LOVE because of their work. I will correct the unruly, comfort the fainthearted, help the weak, and be PATIENT with Everyone.
- I decree and declare I REJOICE ALWAYS, PRAYING CONSTANTLY, and in everything I GIVE THANKS, for this is God's/Elohim's will in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua. I will heed prophetic messages, testing all things, holding fast to what is good, but keeping away from every kind of evil.
- I decree and declare we who are STRONG bear the weaknesses of the powerless and not just please ourselves. We each please our neighbor for his good, to BUILD HIM UP. The Scriptures were written for our INSTRUCTION, so that through PATIENCE and the ENCOURAGEMENT of the Word we might have HOPE.
- I decree and declare God/Elohim has FAVORED ME, the least of His Saints/Kedoshim, to PROCLAIM to the World the ENDLESS RICHES OF CHRIST/MESSIAH and to bring to LIGHT the plan of the Mystery – which for ages was hidden in God/Elohim who created all thing!
- I decree and declare and BOW MY KNEES BEFORE THE FATHER from Him every Family in Heaven and on Earth receives its name. From His GLORIOUS RICHES He will STRENGTHEN YOU in your inner being with POWER through His Spirit/Ruach, so that Christ/Messiah may dwell in your hearts through FAITH. You are ROOTED AND GROUNDED IN LOVE, so you will have the STRENGTH TO GRASP THE LOVE OF CHRIST/MESSIAH which surpasses knowledge, so you will be filled up with all the fullness of God/Elohim.
- I REJOICE for our God is ABLE TO DO FAR BEYOND all that we ask or imagine, by means of His POWER that works in us, to Him be the GLORY in the Community of Believers and in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua throughout all generations FOREVER AND EVER! Amen!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 10, 2020]

The Lord is Your Comfort & Joy!

Isaiah 51:1-7, 11-16; 61:4-11; Psalms 16:5-11 (WEB)

Isaiah 51:1-7, 11-16

"Listen to me, you who follow after righteousness, you who seek Yahweh. Look to the rock you were cut from, and to the quarry you were dug from. ²Look to Abraham your father, and to Sarah who bore you; for when he was but one I called him, I blessed him, and made him many. ³ For Yahweh has comforted Zion. He has comforted all her waste places, and has made her wilderness like Eden, and her desert like the garden of Yahweh. Joy and gladness will be found in them, thanksgiving, and the voice of melody. ⁴ "Listen to me, my people; and hear me, my nation, for a law will go out from me, and I will establish my justice for a light to the peoples. ⁵ My righteousness is near. My salvation has gone out, and my arms will judge the peoples. The islands will wait for me, and they will trust my arm. ⁶Lift up your eyes to the heavens, and look at the earth beneath; for the heavens will vanish away like smoke, and the earth will wear out like a garment. Its inhabitants will die in the same way, but my salvation will be forever, and my righteousness will not be abolished. ⁷ "Listen to me, you who know righteousness, the people in whose heart is my law. Don't fear the reproach of men, and don't be dismayed at their insults...

¹¹ Those ransomed by Yahweh will return, and come with singing to Zion. Everlasting joy shall be on their heads. They will obtain gladness and joy. Sorrow and sighing shall flee away.

¹² "I, even I, am he who comforts you.Who are you, that you are afraid of man who shall die, and of the son of man who will be made as grass?

¹³ Have you forgotten Yahweh your Maker, who stretched out the heavens, and laid the foundations of the earth?

Do you live in fear continually all day because of the fury of the oppressor, when he prepares to destroy? Where is the fury of the oppressor? ¹⁴ The captive exile will speedily be freed.

He will not die and go down into the pit. His bread won't fail.

¹⁵ For I am Yahweh your God, who stirs up the sea so that its waves roar.

Yahweh of Armies is his name.

¹⁶I have put my words in your mouth

and have covered you in the shadow of my hand,

that I may plant the heavens,

and lay the foundations of the earth, and tell Zion, 'You are my people.'"

Isaiah 61:4-11

⁴They will rebuild the old ruins. They will raise up the former devastated places. They will repair the ruined cities that have been devastated for many generations. ⁵ Strangers will stand and feed your flocks. Foreigners will work your fields and your vineyards. ⁶ But you will be called Yahweh's priests. Men will call you the servants of our God. You will eat the wealth of the nations. You will boast in their glory. ⁷ Instead of your shame you will have double. Instead of dishonor, they will rejoice in their portion. Therefore in their land they will possess double. Everlasting joy will be to them. ⁸ "For I, Yahweh, love justice. I hate robbery and iniquity. I will give them their reward in truth and I will make an everlasting covenant with them. ⁹Their offspring will be known among the nations, and their offspring among the peoples. All who see them will acknowledge them, that they are the offspring which Yahweh has blessed." ¹⁰ I will greatly rejoice in Yahweh!

My soul will be joyful in my God,

for he has clothed me with the garments of salvation. He has covered me with the robe of righteousness, as a bridegroom decks himself with a garland

and as a bride adorns herself with her jewels.

¹¹ For as the earth produces its bud, and as the garden causes the things that are sown in it to spring up, so the Lord Yahweh will cause righteousness and praise to spring up before all the nations.

Psalms 16:5-11

⁵ Yahweh assigned my portion and my cup. You made my lot secure.

- ⁶The lines have fallen to me in pleasant places. Yes, I have a good inheritance.
- ⁷ I will bless Yahweh, who has given me counsel. Yes, my heart instructs me in the night seasons.
- ⁸I have set Yahweh always before me.

Because he is at my right hand, I shall not be moved.

- ⁹Therefore my heart is glad, and my tongue rejoices.
 - My body shall also dwell in safety.
- ¹⁰ For you will not leave my soul in Sheol,
- neither will you allow your holy one to see corruption.
- ¹¹You will show me the path of life.
 - In your presence is fullness of joy.
- In your right hand there are pleasures forever more.

- I decree and declare to all who PURSUE JUSTICE and SEEK the Lord/Adonai: you KNOW the ROCK from which you were cut, the quarry from which you were dug – you KNOW Abraham your father and Sarah, who gave birth to you; in that the Lord called him when he was only one person, then blessed him and made him many.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai will COMFORT all your ruined places, will make your desert like EDEN. JOY and GLADNESS will be in your midst, THANKSGIVING and the sound of MUSIC. You PAY ATTENTION to the Lord; you LISTEN TO HIM! For His Law/Torah goes out from Him; you are CALMED by His JUSTICE and LIGHT!
- I decree and declare you LISTEN to the Lord/YOU ARE NOT AFRAID of people's taunts or upset by their insults.

- I decree and declare you who are RANSOMED by the Lord will return and come with SINGING to Zion/Tziyon! Yes, the Lord is the One who COMFORTS you! You will not be afraid of a man, who must die; of a human being who will wither like grass.
- I decree and declare the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai has put His Words in your mouth and COVERED you with the Shadow of His Hand, in order to plant the skies anew, lay the foundations of the earth anew and say to Zion/Tziyon, "YOU ARE MY PEOPLE."
- I decree and declare your life that has been in ruins will be RESTORED, REBUILT! As the Lord said they will rebuild the ancient ruins, RESTORE SITES LONG DESTROYED; they will RENEW the ruined cities, destroyed many generations ago. It doesn't matter how long it has been, God/Elohim has the original blueprints, the original plans for your life.
- I decree and declare you are a PRIEST of the Lord/Adonai, a minister to our God/Elohim. You will feed on the WEALTH of nations and revel in their riches. Because of the disgrace you have suffered, the land which will be yours will be doubled, and joy forever will be yours.
- I decree and declare you are JOYFUL in the Lord/Adonai. Your soul REJOICES in your God/Elohim, for He has CLOTHED you in SALVATION, DRESSED you with a ROBE of TRIUMPH. The Lord God/Adonai Elohim will cause VICTORY and GLORY to spring up before all Nations.
- I decree and declare Lord/Adonai, YOU are my ASSIGNED PORTION, my cup; YOU SAFEGUARD MY SHARE. Pleasant places are measured out for me; I am content with my Heritage. I BLESS the Lord/Adonai, my Counselor; at night my inmost being instructs me.
- I decree and declare I ALWAYS set the Lord/Adonai before me; with Him at my right hand, I can NEVER BE MOVED; so my Heart is GLAD, my glory REJOICES, and my body too RESTS IN SAFETY; for He will not abandon me to Sheol, He will not let His faithful ones see the Abyss. He makes me know the Path of Life; in His PRESENCE is unbounded JOY, in His Right Hand ETERNAL DELIGHT.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, November 12, 2018]

By Acts of Courage Your Faith is Seen!

James 2:14-26; Luke 5: 4-11, 27-32; Matthew 4:18-25; Romans 4:13-25 (WEB)

James 2:14-26

¹⁴ What good is it, my brothers, if a man says he has faith, but has no works? Can faith save him? ¹⁵ And if a brother or sister is naked and in lack of daily food, ¹⁶ and one of you tells them, "Go in peace. Be warmed and filled;" yet you didn't give them the things the body needs, what good is it? ¹⁷ Even so faith, if it has no works, is dead in itself. ¹⁸ Yes, a man will say, "You have faith, and I have works." Show me your faith without works, and I will show you my faith by my works.

¹⁹ You believe that God is one. You do well. The demons also believe, and shudder. ²⁰ But do you want to know, vain man, that faith apart from works is dead? ²¹ Wasn't Abraham our father justified by works, in that he offered up Isaac his son on the altar? ²² You see that faith worked with his works, and by works faith was perfected. ²³ So the Scripture was fulfilled which says, "Abraham believed God, and it was accounted to him as righteousness," <u>Genesis 15:6</u> and he was called the friend of God. ²⁴ You see then that by works, a man is justified, and not only by faith. ²⁵ In the same way, wasn't Rahab the prostitute also justified by works, in that she received the messengers and sent them out another way? ²⁶ For as the body apart from the spirit is dead, even so faith apart from works is dead.

Luke 5: 4-11, 27-32

⁴ When he had finished speaking, he said to Simon, "Put out into the deep, and let down your nets for a catch."

⁵ Simon answered him, "Master, we worked all night, and took nothing; but at your word I will let down the net." ⁶ When they had done this, they caught a great multitude of fish, and their net was breaking. ⁷ They beckoned to their partners in the other boat, that they should come and help them. They came, and filled both boats, so that they began to sink. ⁸ But Simon Peter, when he saw it, fell down at Jesus' knees, saying, "Depart from me, for I am a sinful man, Lord." ⁹ For he was amazed, and all who were with him, at the catch of fish which they had caught; ¹⁰ and so also were James and John, sons of Zebedee, who were partners with Simon.

Jesus said to Simon, "Don't be afraid. From now on you will be catching people alive."

¹¹ When they had brought their boats to land, they left everything, and followed him....

²⁷ After these things he went out, and saw a tax collector named Levi sitting at the tax office, and said to him, "Follow me!"

²⁸ He left everything, and rose up and followed him. ²⁹ Levi made a great feast for him in his house. There was a great crowd of tax collectors and others who were reclining with them. ³⁰ Their scribes and the Pharisees murmured against his disciples, saying, "Why do you eat and drink with the tax collectors and sinners?" ³¹ Jesus answered them, "Those who are healthy have no need for a physician, but those who are sick do. ³² I have not come to call the righteous, but sinners to repentance."

Matthew 4:18-25

¹⁸ Walking by the sea of Galilee, he^[a] saw two brothers: Simon, who is called Peter, and Andrew, his

brother, casting a net into the sea; for they were fishermen. ¹⁹ He said to them, "Come after me, and I will make you fishers for men."

²⁰ They immediately left their nets and followed him. ²¹ Going on from there, he saw two other brothers, James the son of Zebedee, and John his brother, in the boat with Zebedee their father, mending their nets. He called them. ²² They immediately left the boat and their father, and followed him.

²³ Jesus went about in all Galilee, teaching in their synagogues, preaching the Good News of the Kingdom, and healing every disease and every sickness among the people. ²⁴ The report about him went out into all Syria. They brought to him all who were sick, afflicted with various diseases and torments, possessed with demons, epileptics, and paralytics; and he healed them. ²⁵ Great multitudes from Galilee, Decapolis, Jerusalem, Judea, and from beyond the Jordan followed him.

Romans 4:13-25

¹³ For the promise to Abraham and to his offspring that he should be heir of the world wasn't through the law, but through the righteousness of faith. ¹⁴ For if those who are of the law are heirs, faith is made void, and the promise is made of no effect. ¹⁵ For the law produces wrath, for where there is no law, neither is there disobedience. ¹⁶ For this cause it is of faith, that it may be according to grace, to the end that the promise may be sure to all the offspring, not to that only which is of the law, but to that also which is of the faith of Abraham, who is the father of us all. ¹⁷ As it is written, "I have made you a father of many nations." Genesis 17:5 This is in the presence of him whom he believed: God, who gives life to the dead, and calls the things that are not, as though they were. ¹⁸ Besides hope, Abraham in hope believed, to the end that he might become a father of many nations, according to that which had been spoken, "So will your offspring be." Genesis 15:5¹⁹ Without being weakened in faith, he didn't consider his own body, already having been worn out, (he being about a hundred years old), and the deadness of Sarah's womb.²⁰ Yet, looking to the promise of God, he didn't waver through unbelief, but grew strong through faith, giving glory to God, ²¹ and being fully assured that what he had promised, he was also able to perform. ²² Therefore it also was "credited to him for righteousness." Genesis 15:6 ²³ Now it was not written that it was accounted to him for his sake alone, ²⁴ but for our sake also, to whom it will be accounted, who believe in him who raised Jesus, our Lord, from the dead, ²⁵ who was delivered up for our trespasses, and was raised for our justification.

- I decree and declare it is by my ACTIONS that FAITH is brought to Life! For we know that if someone says he has faith, but does not have works, his faith is dead by itself. Rahab was proved RIGHTEOUS by WORKS when she welcomed the messengers and sent them out another way. For just as the body without the spirit is dead, so also FAITH WITHOUT WORKS IS DEAD.
- I decree and declare Father Abraham/Avraham was PROVED RIGHTEOUS by works when he offered up Isaac/Yitz'chak his son on the altar. His faith WORKED TOGETHER with his works, and by the works his FAITH WAS MADE COMPLETE! As he BELIEVED God/Elohim, it was credited to him as RIGHTEOUSNESS and he was called God's/Elohim's FRIEND. We see that a man is PROVED RIGHTEOUS by works and not by faith alone.

- I decree and declare when you FOLLOW the LORD'S/ADONAI'S LEADING there is a SURE REWARD! You will not allow your current experience to block your FAITH, but rather you will DECLARE: "But at Your Word, Lord/Adonai, I will do what You've instructed me." Your REWARD WILL BE GREAT as you STEP OUT in OBEDIENCE!
- I decree and declare as you STEP INTO YOUR MIRACLES you will call to and attract others; they will SEE YOUR ABUNDANCE and they will be BLESSED also! AMAZEMENT will grip all who are with you, over the magnitude of the miracles. DO NOT BE FEARFUL for you will be CATCHING MEN rather than your daily labor. You will FOLLOW JESUS/YESHUA and leave your daily tools and work behind.
- I decree and declare although, to those in the marketplace and congregations, you may not appear to be the "type" to have a call on your life, the LORD DOES NOT LOOK UPON YOU WITH THE EYES OF THE WORLD, BUT RATHER WITH THE EYES OF GOD, KNOWING YOUR CHARACTER and HEART. He SEES your beginning and your end. He is calling you, "FOLLOW ME!"
- I decree and declare I WILL NOT ALLOW the judgments of the World to dissuade me from FOLLOWING JESUS/YESHUA! There will always be those who feel the need to put me down. I WILL NOT PAY ATTENTION to them. I WILL KEEP MY EYES on the Lord/Adonai and DO WHAT PLEASES HIM!
- I decree and declare I will FOLLOW when the Lord/Adonai CALLS me; I will GO where He LEADS me. I will IMMEDIATELY leave what I am doing and FOLLOW HIM!
- I decree and declare, because Christ/Messiah LIVES IN ME, I will TEACH with the WISDOM of God/Elohim, PROCLAIMING the Good News of the Kingdom, and HEALING every kind of Disease and Sickness among the People. Because of His Working in our midst, News of God's Miracles will SPREAD throughout the region.
- I decree and declare I am RIGHTEOUS through my TRUST in God's/Elohim's PROMISE TRUST in the SAVING GRACE made available through the death and RESURRECTION of His Son, Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua! The PROMISE according to GRACE is GUARANTEED to all Abraham's/Avraham's offspring – not only to those of the Law/Torah but also to those of his FAITH. He is the Father of us all.
- I decree and declare I will TRUST in HOPE BEYOND HOPE in the PROMISES the Lord/Adonai has given to me. For with God/Elohim, NOTHING IS IMPOSSIBLE. I will not waver in unbelief concerning the Promise of God, Rather I AM STRENGTHENED IN FAITH, giving GLORY to Him! I am FULLY CONVINCED that what God/Elohim has PROMISED, He also is ABLE TO DO!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, September 4, 2019]

I Obey the Word of the Lord Wholeheartedly!

Numbers 14:6-25; Zephaniah 3:9-20 Romans 6:16-23 (WEB)

Numbers 14:6-25

⁶ Joshua the son of Nun and Caleb the son of Jephunneh, who were of those who spied out the land, tore their clothes. ⁷ They spoke to all the congregation of the children of Israel, saying, "The land, which we passed through to spy it out, is an exceedingly good land. ⁸ If Yahweh delights in us, then he will bring us into this land, and give it to us: a land which flows with milk and honey. ⁹ Only don't rebel against Yahweh, neither fear the people of the land; for they are bread for us. Their defense is removed from over them, and Yahweh is with us. Don't fear them."

¹⁰ But all the congregation threatened to stone them with stones.

Yahweh's glory appeared in the Tent of Meeting to all the children of Israel. ¹¹Yahweh said to Moses, "How long will this people despise me? How long will they not believe in me, for all the signs which I have worked among them? ¹²I will strike them with the pestilence, and disinherit them, and will make of you a nation greater and mightier than they."

¹³ Moses said to Yahweh, "Then the Egyptians will hear it; for you brought up this people in your might from among them. ¹⁴ They will tell it to the inhabitants of this land. They have heard that you Yahweh are among this people; for you Yahweh are seen face to face, and your cloud stands over them, and you go before them, in a pillar of cloud by day, and in a pillar of fire by night. ¹⁵ Now if you killed this people as one man, then the nations which have heard the fame of you will speak, saying, ¹⁶ 'Because Yahweh was not able to bring this people into the land which he swore to them, therefore he has slain them in the wilderness.' ¹⁷ Now please let the power of the Lord^[a] be great, according as you have spoken, saying, ¹⁸ 'Yahweh is slow to anger, and abundant in loving kindness, forgiving iniquity and disobedience; and he will by no means clear the guilty, visiting the iniquity of the fathers on the children, on the third and on the fourth generation.' ¹⁹ Please pardon the iniquity of this people according to the greatness of your loving kindness, and just as you have forgiven this people, from Egypt even until now."

²⁰ Yahweh said, "I have pardoned according to your word; ²¹ but in very deed—as I live, and as all the earth shall be filled with Yahweh's glory— ²² because all those men who have seen my glory and my signs, which I worked in Egypt and in the wilderness, yet have tempted me these ten times, and have not listened to my voice; ²³ surely they shall not see the land which I swore to their fathers, neither shall any of those who despised me see it. ²⁴ But my servant Caleb, because he had another spirit with him, and has followed me fully, him I will bring into the land into which he went. His offspring shall possess it. ²⁵ Since the Amalekite and the Canaanite dwell in the valley, tomorrow turn and go into the wilderness by the way to the Red Sea."

Zephaniah 3:9-20

⁹ For then I will purify the lips of the peoples, that they may all call on Yahweh's name, to serve him shoulder to shoulder. ¹⁰ From beyond the rivers of Cush, my worshipers, even the daughter of my dispersed people, will bring my offering. ¹¹ In that day you will not be disappointed for all your doings, in which you have transgressed against me; for then I will take away out from among you your proudly exulting ones, and you will no more be arrogant in my holy mountain. ¹² But I will leave among you an afflicted and poor people, and they will take refuge in Yahweh's name. ¹³ The remnant of Israel will not

do iniquity, nor speak lies, neither will a deceitful tongue be found in their mouth, for they will feed and lie down, and no one will make them afraid."

¹⁴ Sing, daughter of Zion! Shout, Israel! Be glad and rejoice with all your heart, daughter of Jerusalem. ¹⁵ Yahweh has taken away your judgments. He has thrown out your enemy. The King of Israel, Yahweh, is among you. You will not be afraid of evil any more. ¹⁶ In that day, it will be said to Jerusalem, "Don't be afraid, Zion. Don't let your hands be weak." ¹⁷ Yahweh, your God, is among you, a mighty one who will save. He will rejoice over you with joy. He will calm you in his love. He will rejoice over you with singing. ¹⁸ I will remove those who grieve about the appointed feasts from you. They are a burden and a reproach to you. ¹⁹ Behold,^[a] at that time I will deal with all those who afflict you, and I will save those who are lame, and gather those who were driven away. I will give them praise and honor, whose shame has been in all the earth. ²⁰ At that time I will bring you in, and at that time I will gather you; for I will give you honor and praise among all the peoples of the earth, when I restore your fortunes before your eyes, says Yahweh.

Romans 6:16-23

¹⁶ Don't you know that when you present yourselves as servants and obey someone, you are the servants of whomever you obey; whether of sin to death, or of obedience to righteousness? ¹⁷ But thanks be to God, that, whereas you were bondservants of sin, you became obedient from the heart to that form of teaching to which you were delivered. ¹⁸ Being made free from sin, you became bondservants of righteousness.

¹⁹ I speak in human terms because of the weakness of your flesh, for as you presented your members as servants to uncleanness and to wickedness upon wickedness, even so now present your members as servants to righteousness for sanctification. ²⁰ For when you were servants of sin, you were free from righteousness. ²¹ What fruit then did you have at that time in the things of which you are now ashamed? For the end of those things is death. ²² But now, being made free from sin and having become servants of God, you have your fruit of sanctification and the result of eternal life. ²³ For the wages of sin is death, but the free gift of God is eternal life in Christ Jesus our Lord.

- I decree and declare what the Lord/Adonai has before US is EXCEPTIONALLY GOOD! Only DO NOT REBEL against Him, and DO NOT BE AFRAID of the People of the Land. The protection over them is gone. The Lord/Adonai is with US, WHO TRUST and FOLLOW HIM WHOLEHEARTEDLY!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is SLOW TO ANGER and ABUNDANT IN LOVINGKINDNESS, forgiving iniquity and transgression. Yet the GUILTY WILL NOT GO UNPUNISHED; the iniquity of the fathers is upon the children to the third and fourth generations. Through Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua THERE IS FORGIVENESS OF SINS and HE REMEMBERS THEM NO MORE!
- I decree and declare this WARNING from the Lord: those who SEE MY GLORY and MY MIRACULOUS SIGNS, yet TEST ME, again and again, WILL NOT ENTER INTO THE PROMISES I AM GIVING TO MY FAITHFUL ONES. All who TREAT THE LORD/ADONAI WITH CONTEMPT will not see the FORETOLD PROMISES.

- I decree and declare the Lord is RESTORING TO HIS PEOPLE a PURE SPEECH, so that all may CALL UPON THE NAME OF THE LORD/ADONAI and SERVE Him shoulder to shoulder. We will WORSHIP and bring our OFFERING before the Lord/Adonai, the King of Kings.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai will REMOVE FROM OUR MIDST THE PROUD, ARROGANT ONES, and we will never again be haughty as we come before Him on His Holy Mountain. Those whom He will leave among us are a People MEEK and HUMBLE. WE TAKE REFUGE IN THE NAME OF THE LORD/ADONAI! The REMNANT of Israel will do no injustice nor will they tell lies, nor will a deceitful tongue be found in their mouths.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai HAS TAKEN AWAY YOUR PUNISHMENTS. He has turned back your adversary. THE KING, THE LORD/ADONAI, IS IN YOUR MIDST! NEVER AGAIN WILL YOU FEAR HARM!
- I decree and declare the Lord my God/Adonai Elohai is with me a MIGHTY SAVIOR! HE DELIVGHTS OVER ME WITH JOY! HE QUIETS ME WITH HIS LOVE! HE DANCES WITH JOY OVER ME WITH SINGING!
- I decree and declare the time is coming when the Lord/Adonai will deal with all who oppress you. He will SAVE THE LAME and GATHER THE OUTCAST. He will make them a PRAISE and a name throughout all the Land where they suffered shame. At that time He will BRING YOU IN – He will gather you. God Almighty/El Shaddai says, "FOR I WILL GIVE YOU RENOWN AND GLORY AMONG ALL THE PEOPLES OF THE EARTH!"
- I decree and declare I choose only to WHOLEHEARTEDLY OBEY THE WORD OF GOD/ELOHIM as I am enslaved to RIGHTEOUSNESS. I yield my body as a SLAVE to RIGHTEOUSNESS resulting in HOLINESS!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, May 22, 2020]

I Focus on the Promise!

Deuteronomy 11:7-21, 29-32; Numbers 32:1-7, 16-23; Matthew 19:16-22 (WEB)

Deuteronomy 11:7-21, 29-32

⁷ but your eyes have seen all of Yahweh's great work which he did.

⁸Therefore you shall keep the entire commandment which I command you today, that you may be strong, and go in and possess the land that you go over to possess; ⁹ and that you may prolong your days in the land which Yahweh swore to your fathers to give to them and to their offspring, a land flowing with milk and honey. ¹⁰ For the land, where you go in to possess isn't like the land of Egypt that you came out of, where you sowed your seed and watered it with your foot, as a garden of herbs; ¹¹ but the land that you go over to possess is a land of hills and valleys which drinks water from the rain of the sky, ¹² a land which Yahweh your God cares for. Yahweh your God's eyes are always on it, from the beginning of the year even to the end of the year. ¹³ It shall happen, if you shall listen diligently to my commandments which I command you today, to love Yahweh your God, and to serve him with all your heart and with all your soul, ¹⁴ that I will give the rain for your land in its season, the early rain and the latter rain, that you may gather in your grain, your new wine, and your oil. ¹⁵ I will give grass in your fields for your livestock, and you shall eat and be full. ¹⁶ Be careful, lest your heart be deceived, and you turn away to serve other gods and worship them; ¹⁷ and Yahweh's anger be kindled against you, and he shut up the sky so that there is no rain, and the land doesn't yield its fruit; and you perish quickly from off the good land which Yahweh gives you. ¹⁸ Therefore you shall lay up these words of mine in your heart and in your soul. You shall bind them for a sign on your hand, and they shall be for frontlets between your eyes. ¹⁹ You shall teach them to your children, talking of them when you sit in your house, when you walk by the way, when you lie down, and when you rise up. ²⁰ You shall write them on the door posts of your house and on your gates; ²¹ that your days and your children's days may be multiplied in the land which Yahweh swore to your fathers to give them, as the days of the heavens above the earth....

²⁹ It shall happen, when Yahweh your God brings you into the land that you go to possess, that you shall set the blessing on Mount Gerizim, and the curse on Mount Ebal. ³⁰ Aren't they beyond the Jordan, behind the way of the going down of the sun, in the land of the Canaanites who dwell in the Arabah near Gilgal, beside the oaks of Moreh? ³¹ For you are to pass over the Jordan to go in to possess the land which Yahweh your God gives you, and you shall possess it and dwell in it. ³² You shall observe to do all the statutes and the ordinances which I set before you today.

Numbers 32:1-7, 16-23

Now the children of Reuben and the children of Gad had a very great multitude of livestock. They saw the land of Jazer, and the land of Gilead. Behold, the place was a place for livestock. ²Then the children of Gad and the children of Reuben came and spoke to Moses, and to Eleazar the priest, and to the princes of the congregation, saying, ³ "Ataroth, Dibon, Jazer, Nimrah, Heshbon, Elealeh, Sebam, Nebo, and Beon, ⁴ the land which Yahweh struck before the congregation of Israel, is a land for livestock; and your servants have livestock." ⁵They said, "If we have found favor in your sight, let this land be given to your servants for a possession. Don't bring us over the Jordan."

⁶ Moses said to the children of Gad, and to the children of Reuben, "Shall your brothers go to war while you sit here? ⁷ Why do you discourage the heart of the children of Israel from going over into the land which Yahweh has given them?...

¹⁶ They came near to him, and said, "We will build sheepfolds here for our livestock, and cities for our little ones; ¹⁷ but we ourselves will be ready armed to go before the children of Israel, until we have brought them to their place. Our little ones shall dwell in the fortified cities because of the inhabitants of the land. ¹⁸ We will not return to our houses until the children of Israel have all received their inheritance. ¹⁹ For we will not inherit with them on the other side of the Jordan and beyond, because our inheritance has come to us on this side of the Jordan eastward."

²⁰ Moses said to them: "If you will do this thing, if you will arm yourselves to go before Yahweh to the war, ²¹ and every one of your armed men will pass over the Jordan before Yahweh until he has driven out his enemies from before him, ²² and the land is subdued before Yahweh; then afterward you shall return, and be clear of obligation to Yahweh and to Israel. Then this land shall be your possession before Yahweh.

²³ "But if you will not do so, behold, you have sinned against Yahweh; and be sure your sin will find you out.

Matthew 19:16-22

¹⁶ Behold, one came to him and said, "Good teacher, what good thing shall I do, that I may have eternal life?"

¹⁷ He said to him, "Why do you call me good?^[a] No one is good but one, that is, God. But if you want to enter into life, keep the commandments."

¹⁸ He said to him, "Which ones?"

Jesus said, "'You shall not murder.' 'You shall not commit adultery.' 'You shall not steal.' 'You shall not offer false testimony.' ¹⁹ 'Honor your father and your mother.'<u>Exodus 20:12-16</u>; <u>Deuteronomy 5:16-</u> <u>20</u> And, 'You shall love your neighbor as yourself.'"<u>Leviticus 19:18</u>

²⁰ The young man said to him, "All these things I have observed from my youth. What do I still lack?"

²¹ Jesus said to him, "If you want to be perfect, go, sell what you have, and give to the poor, and you will have treasure in heaven; and come, follow me." ²² But when the young man heard this, he went away sad, for he was one who had great possessions.

- I decree and declare I KNOW and I have SEEN the Great Deeds of the Lord/Adonai. I LOVE my Gracious Father/Abba and know He is FAITHFUL. Therefore, I will keep His Commands; He makes me STRONG so that I can TAKE POSSESSION of the FRUITFUL Land He has given me to CONQUER!
- I decree and declare, and I PRAISE You, Lord/Adonai, for you give my Land its RAIN at the right Seasons, including the Early Fall Rains and the Late Spring Rains; so I can gather in my crops;

you give my fields grass for the Livestock; YOU, Lord, PROVIDE so that I can eat and be SATISFIED!

- I decree and declare I KEEP FOCUSED on God's PROMISE; I will not be seduced by the convenient or easy path; I will not turn aside from God's CHOSEN WAY, His DESTINY for me.
- I decree and declare God/Elohim CLEARLY and SPECIFICALLY LAYS your PATH before you. It is not a guessing game. He makes it clear, so that you DESIRE to OBEY Him and Him alone.
- I decree and declare you will not be persuaded or seduced to forsake God's PERFECT WILL for you because of a land that LOOKS GOOD to your eyes. Not all situations that look good are meant for you. Only God's PATH for you is covered by His unfailing PROTECTION and GUIDANCE. Those who think they know better than God, doubt His Omniscience and Sovereignty. When they go their own way, they step out from under God's Cloud of Protection.
- I decree and declare it is VITAL that you walk PURELY before the Lord your God. Many are looking at your Life, the decisions you make and how you live before God. Set the RIGHT EXAMPLE in placing God's WILL before all others. Do NOTHING out of SELFISH AMBITION.
- I declare the Lord ALLOWS you to choose which way you will go; but there is only ONE PERFECT PATH. CHOOSE the Path you will take and walk in it. The person who FEARS the Lord/Adonai will be taught by Him to know the Way to choose. (Psalm 25:12)
- I decree and declare, each day, I grow more deeply in LOVE with my Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah, comprehending more fully His Sacrifice and LOVE for me. Never will I fully know how DEEP is His LOVE for me. I give my all to Him, pursuing the goal in order to win the prize offered by God's High Calling in Christ/Messiah. (Philippians 3:14)
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, December 26, 2018]

Holy Calling

You Have a Holy Calling!

2 Timothy 1:6-14; 2:1-26; Romans 8:28-30; Hebrews 3:1-15 (WEB)

2 Timothy 1:6-14

⁶ For this cause, I remind you that you should stir up the gift of God which is in you through the laying on of my hands. ⁷ For God didn't give us a spirit of fear, but of power, love, and self-control. ⁸ Therefore don't be ashamed of the testimony of our Lord, nor of me his prisoner; but endure hardship for the Good News according to the power of God, ⁹ who saved us and called us with a holy calling, not according to our works, but according to his own purpose and grace, which was given to us in Christ Jesus before times eternal, ¹⁰ but has now been revealed by the appearing of our Savior, Christ Jesus, who abolished death, and brought life and immortality to light through the Good News. ¹¹ For this I was appointed as a preacher, an apostle, and a teacher of the Gentiles. ¹² For this cause I also suffer these things.

Yet I am not ashamed, for I know him whom I have believed, and I am persuaded that he is able to guard that which I have committed to him against that day.

¹³ Hold the pattern of sound words which you have heard from me, in faith and love which is in Christ Jesus. ¹⁴ That good thing which was committed to you, guard through the Holy Spirit who dwells in us.

2 Timothy 2:1-26

You therefore, my child, be strengthened in the grace that is in Christ Jesus. ² The things which you have heard from me among many witnesses, commit the same things to faithful men, who will be able to teach others also. ³ You therefore must endure hardship as a good soldier of Christ Jesus. ⁴ No soldier on duty entangles himself in the affairs of life, that he may please him who enrolled him as a soldier. ⁵ Also, if anyone competes in athletics, he isn't crowned unless he has competed by the rules. ⁶ The farmer who labors must be the first to get a share of the crops. ⁷ Consider what I say, and may the Lord give you understanding in all things.

⁸ Remember Jesus Christ, risen from the dead, of the offspring^[a] of David, according to my Good News, ⁹ in which I suffer hardship to the point of chains as a criminal. But God's word isn't chained. ¹⁰ Therefore I endure all things for the chosen ones' sake, that they also may obtain the salvation which is in Christ Jesus with eternal glory. ¹¹ This saying is trustworthy:

"For if we died with him, we will also live with him.
¹² If we endure, we will also reign with him.
If we deny him, he also will deny us.
¹³ If we are faithless, he remains faithful; for he can't deny himself."

¹⁴ Remind them of these things, charging them in the sight of the Lord, that they don't argue about words, to no profit, to the subverting of those who hear.

¹⁵ Give diligence to present yourself approved by God, a workman who doesn't need to be ashamed, properly handling the Word of Truth. ¹⁶ But shun empty chatter, for it will go further in ungodliness, ¹⁷ and those words will consume like gangrene, of whom is Hymenaeus and Philetus: ¹⁸ men who have erred concerning the truth, saying that the resurrection is already past, and overthrowing the faith of some. ¹⁹ However God's firm foundation stands, having this seal, "The Lord knows those who are his," <u>Numbers 16:5</u> and, "Let every one who names the name of the Lord depart from unrighteousness." ²⁰ Now in a large house there are not only vessels of gold and of silver, but also of wood and of clay. Some are for honor, and some for dishonor. ²¹ If anyone therefore purges himself from these, he will be a vessel for honor, sanctified, and suitable for the master's use, prepared for every good work.

²² Flee from youthful lusts; but pursue righteousness, faith, love, and peace with those who call on the Lord out of a pure heart. ²³ But refuse foolish and ignorant questionings, knowing that they generate strife. ²⁴ The Lord's servant must not quarrel, but be gentle toward all, able to teach, patient, ²⁵ in gentleness correcting those who oppose him: perhaps God may give them repentance leading to a full knowledge of the truth, ²⁶ and they may recover themselves out of the devil's snare, having been taken captive by him to his will.

Romans 8:28-30: ²⁸ We know that all things work together for good for those who love God, for those who are called according to his purpose. ²⁹ For whom he foreknew, he also predestined to be conformed to the image of his Son, that he might be the firstborn among many brothers. ³⁰ Whom he predestined, those he also called. Whom he called, those he also justified. Whom he justified, those he also glorified.

Hebrews 3:1-15: Therefore, holy brothers, partakers of a heavenly calling, consider the Apostle and High Priest of our confession: Jesus, ² who was faithful to him who appointed him, as also Moses was in all his house. ³ For he has been counted worthy of more glory than Moses, because he who built the house has more honor than the house. ⁴ For every house is built by someone; but he who built all things is God. ⁵ Moses indeed was faithful in all his house as a servant, for a testimony of those things which were afterward to be spoken, ⁶ but Christ is faithful as a Son over his house. We are his house, if we hold fast our confidence and the glorying of our hope firm to the end. ⁷Therefore, even as the Holy Spirit says,

"Today if you will hear his voice,

- ⁸ don't harden your hearts, as in the rebellion, in the day of the trial in the wilderness,
- ⁹ where your fathers tested me and tried me, and saw my deeds for forty years.
- ¹⁰ Therefore I was displeased with that generation, and said, 'They always err in their heart, but they didn't know my ways.'
- ¹¹As I swore in my wrath, 'They will not enter into my rest.'"<u>Psalm 95:7-11</u>

¹² Beware, brothers, lest perhaps there might be in any one of you an evil heart of unbelief, in falling away from the living God; ¹³ but exhort one another day by day, so long as it is called "today", lest any one of you be hardened by the deceitfulness of sin. ¹⁴ For we have become partakers of Christ, if we hold the beginning of our confidence firm to the end, ¹⁵ while it is said, "Today if you will hear his voice, don't harden your hearts, as in the rebellion."<u>Psalm 95:7-8</u>

- I decree and declare I WILL FAN INTO FLAME the Gift of God/Elohim, which is in me! For God/Elohim has not given me a spirit of timidity but of POWER and LOVE and self-discipline. I am not ashamed of the Testimony of our Lord, Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah, nor of those who are His Prisoner, but SHARE IN THE SUFFERING for the Good News ACCORDING TO THE POWER OF GOD!
- I decree and declare God/Elohim has saved us and CALLED US WITH A HOLY CALLING not because of our deeds but because of HIS OWN PURPOSE AND GRACE! This Grace was given to us in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua before time began, but NOW HAS BEEN REVEALED through the appearing of our Savior Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.
- I decree and declare for this Good News I WAS APPOINTED A HERALD and an Apostle and a Teacher! For this reason, I also am suffering these things – but I AM NOT ASHAMED, for I KNOW IN WHOM I HAVE TRUSTED and I AM CONVINCED HE IS ABLE TO SAFEGUARD what I have ENTRUSTED to Him until that Day!
- I decree and declare I am STRENGTHENED in the GRACE that is in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua. What I have heard by the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh and His Faithful Servants, I will ENTRUST TO THE FAITHFUL PEOPLE who are CAPABLE to TEACH others also. I will suffer hardship as a good soldier of Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.
- I decree and declare I will ENDURE everything for the sake of the CHOSEN, so they might OBTAIN the SALVATION that is in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua with Eternal Glory! Trustworthy is the saying: If we died with Him, we will also live with Him; if we endure, we will also reign with Him; if we deny Him, He will also deny us; if we are faithless, HE REMAINS FAITHFUL, for He cannot deny Himself!
- I decree and declare I will PRESENT MYSELF BEFORE GOD/ELOHIM as tried and true, as an UNASHAMED WORKER cutting a straight path with the word of Truth. I will avoid godless chatter, for it leads to further ungodliness.
- I decree and declare the FIRM FOUNDATION OF GOD STANDS, having this seal: "The Lord knows those who are His," and "Let everyone who names the name of the Lord keep away from unrighteousness." I will flee youthful desires, but instead, I WILL PURSUE RIGHTEOUSNESS, FAITHFULNESS, LOVE, and PEACE/SHALOM, with those who call on the Lord from a Pure Heart.

- I decree and declare I KNOW THAT ALL THINGS WORK TOGETHER FOR GOOD for YOU who LOVE God/Elohim, who are CALLED ACCORDING TO HIS PURPOSE. For HE FOREKNEW YOU and He also PREDESTINED YOU to be conformed to the image of His Son, so that He might be the firstborn among many brothers and sisters. And to you whom He predestined, HE ALSO CALLED, and to you whom He called, He also JUSTIFIED, and to you whom He justified, He also GLORIFIED!
- I decree and declare I am among the Holy Brothers and Sisters, PARTNERS IN A HEAVENLY CALLING! I will take notice of Jesus/Yeshua – the Emissary and High Priest/Kohen Gadol, Whom we affirm. Christ/Messiah, as Son, is over God's/Elohim's House – and WE ARE HIS HOUSE, if we hold firm to our boldness and what we are proud to HOPE.
- I decree and declare I WILL LISTEN AND OBEY; I will not harden my heart and fall away. I will remain at the feet of the Lord/Adonai, DWELLING IN HIS PRESENCE and trusting Him. I will not entertain the negative thoughts of the enemy. My God is faithful. We have become PARTNERS OF CHRIST/MESSIAH, if we HOLD OUR ORIGINAL CONVICTION firm until the end!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 9, 2020]

I Am Walking in Christ's Divine Nature!

2 Peter 1:3-13; Acts 16:25-34; 2 Corinthians 5:11-21; Colossians 3:1-4 (WEB)

2 Peter 1:3-13

³ seeing that his divine power has granted to us all things that pertain to life and godliness, through the knowledge of him who called us by his own glory and virtue, ⁴ by which he has granted to us his precious and exceedingly great promises; that through these you may become partakers of the divine nature, having escaped from the corruption that is in the world by lust. ⁵ Yes, and for this very cause adding on your part all diligence, in your faith supply moral excellence; and in moral excellence, knowledge; ⁶ and in knowledge, self-control; and in self-control perseverance; and in perseverance godliness; ⁷ and in godliness brotherly affection; and in brotherly affection, love. ⁸ For if these things are yours and abound, they make you to not be idle or unfruitful in the knowledge of our Lord Jesus Christ. ⁹ For he who lacks these things is blind, seeing only what is near, having forgotten the cleansing from his old sins. ¹⁰ Therefore, brothers, ^[a] be more diligent to make your calling and election sure. For if you do these things, you will never stumble. ¹¹ For thus you will be richly supplied with the entrance into the eternal Kingdom of our Lord and Savior, Jesus Christ.

¹² Therefore I will not be negligent to remind you of these things, though you know them, and are established in the present truth. ¹³ I think it right, as long as I am in this tent, to stir you up by reminding you,

Acts 16:25-34

²⁵ But about midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God, and the prisoners were listening to them. ²⁶ Suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken; and immediately all the doors were opened, and everyone's bonds were loosened. ²⁷ The jailer, being roused out of sleep and seeing the prison doors open, drew his sword and was about to kill himself, supposing that the prisoners had escaped. ²⁸ But Paul cried with a loud voice, saying, "Don't harm yourself, for we are all here!"

²⁹ He called for lights, sprang in, fell down trembling before Paul and Silas, ³⁰ brought them out, and said, "Sirs, what must I do to be saved?"

³¹ They said, "Believe in the Lord Jesus Christ, and you will be saved, you and your household." ³² They spoke the word of the Lord to him, and to all who were in his house.

³³ He took them the same hour of the night and washed their stripes, and was immediately baptized, he and all his household. ³⁴ He brought them up into his house, and set food before them, and rejoiced greatly, with all his household, having believed in God.

2 Corinthians 5:11-21

¹¹ Knowing therefore the fear of the Lord, we persuade men, but we are revealed to God, and I hope that we are revealed also in your consciences. ¹² For we are not commending ourselves to you again, but speak as giving you occasion of boasting on our behalf, that you may have something to answer those who boast in appearance, and not in heart. ¹³ For if we are beside ourselves, it is for God. Or if we are of sober mind, it is for you. ¹⁴ For the love of Christ constrains us; because we judge thus, that one died for all, therefore all died. ¹⁵ He died for all, that those who live should no longer live to themselves, but to

him who for their sakes died and rose again. ¹⁶ Therefore we know no one after the flesh from now on. Even though we have known Christ after the flesh, yet now we know him so no more. ¹⁷ Therefore if anyone is in Christ, he is a new creation. The old things have passed away. Behold, all things have become new. ¹⁸ But all things are of God, who reconciled us to himself through Jesus Christ, and gave to us the ministry of reconciliation; ¹⁹ namely, that God was in Christ reconciling the world to himself, not reckoning to them their trespasses, and having committed to us the word of reconciliation.

²⁰ We are therefore ambassadors on behalf of Christ, as though God were entreating by us: we beg you on behalf of Christ, be reconciled to God. ²¹ For him who knew no sin he made to be sin on our behalf; so that in him we might become the righteousness of God.

Colossians 3:1-4

If then you were raised together with Christ, seek the things that are above, where Christ is, seated on the right hand of God. ² Set your mind on the things that are above, not on the things that are on the earth. ³ For you died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God. ⁴ When Christ, our life, is revealed, then you will also be revealed with him in glory.

- I decree and declare Christ's/Messiah's DIVINE POWER has given us EVERYTHING we need for life and godliness, through the knowledge of Him Who called us by His own GLORY and VIRTUE. Through these things He has given us His PRECIOUS and MAGNIFICENT PROMISES, so that through them you can become partakers of His DIVINE NATURE.
- I decree and declare I make every effort to add VIRTUE to my FAITH, and to virtue, KNOWLEDGE, and to knowledge, SELF-CONTROL; and to self-control, PATIENCE; and to patience, GODLINESS; and to godliness, BROTHERLY LOVE; and to brotherly love, LOVE. For these qualities are in me and increasing, they keep me from becoming idle and unfruitful in the knowledge of our Lord Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah.
- I decree and declare anyone who lacks the qualities of Christ/Messiah is blind nearsighted because he has forgotten his cleansing from past sins. Therefore, brothers and sisters, make all the more EFFORT to make your CALLING and ELECTION certain – for if you keep doing these things, you will never stumble. For in this way ENTRY INTO THE ETERNAL KINGDOM of our Lord and Savior, Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, will be richly provided for you.
- I decree and declare though I may be in prison, I will PRAY and SING to God Most High/El'Elyon. It is in times of discomfort and shame that those who are near you, are WATCHING. And God always HEARS and HE SEES our hearts. It is a setting for His MIRACLES to take place.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai gives GRACE and MERCY to those who walk in His Way. You are able to endure hardships and CARE for others, showing forth His COMPASSION for those in need. The Lord is using these situations to DRAW ALL MEN UNTO Himself!

- I decree and declare PUT YOUR TRUST in the Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua and you will be SAVED – you and your household!
- I decree and declare, knowing the FEAR OF THE LORD, we are trying to persuade people, but what we are is KNOWN TO GOD and I hope it is known to your consciences as well. For we are giving you an opportunity to rejoice with us, boasting in the work we complete, by God's POWER, so that you may have something to answer those who boast in outward appearance and not in the heart. For the LOVE of Christ/Messiah COMPELS us, since we have concluded that One died for all; as a result all died.
- I decree and declare if anyone is in Christ/Messiah, he is a NEW CREATION. The old things have passed away, and all things have become NEW. Now all these things are from God, Who reconciled us to Himself through Christ/Messiah and gave us the Ministry of RECONCILIATION. We are therefore AMBASSADORS for Christ/Messiah, as though God were making His appeal through us!
- I decree and declare if you have been RAISED UP with Christ/Messiah, KEEP SEEKING THE THINGS ABOVE – where Christ/Messiah is, sitting at the Right Hand of God/Elohim. Focus your mind on things above, not on things on the Earth. For you have died, and your life is HIDDEN with Christ/Messiah in God/Elohim.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, June 23, 2019]

You are Boldly Touching the World!

2 Timothy 1:6-14; Acts 4:8-22, 29-31; 19:8-11 (WEB)

2 Timothy 1:6-14

⁶ For this cause, I remind you that you should stir up the gift of God which is in you through the laying on of my hands. ⁷ For God didn't give us a spirit of fear, but of power, love, and self-control. ⁸ Therefore don't be ashamed of the testimony of our Lord, nor of me his prisoner; but endure hardship for the Good News according to the power of God, ⁹ who saved us and called us with a holy calling, not according to our works, but according to his own purpose and grace, which was given to us in Christ Jesus before times eternal, ¹⁰ but has now been revealed by the appearing of our Savior, Christ Jesus, who abolished death, and brought life and immortality to light through the Good News. ¹¹ For this I was appointed as a preacher, an apostle, and a teacher of the Gentiles. ¹² For this cause I also suffer these things.

Yet I am not ashamed, for I know him whom I have believed, and I am persuaded that he is able to guard that which I have committed to him against that day.

¹³ Hold the pattern of sound words which you have heard from me, in faith and love which is in Christ Jesus. ¹⁴ That good thing which was committed to you, guard through the Holy Spirit who dwells in us.

Acts 4:8-22, 29-31

⁸ Then Peter, filled with the Holy Spirit, said to them, "You rulers of the people, and elders of Israel, ⁹ if we are examined today concerning a good deed done to a crippled man, by what means this man has been healed, ¹⁰ may it be known to you all, and to all the people of Israel, that in the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth, whom you crucified, whom God raised from the dead, this man stands here before you whole in him. ¹¹ He is 'the stone which was regarded as worthless by you, the builders, which has become the head of the corner.' <u>Psalm 118:22</u> ¹² There is salvation in no one else, for there is no other name under heaven that is given among men, by which we must be saved!"

¹³ Now when they saw the boldness of Peter and John, and had perceived that they were unlearned and ignorant men, they marveled. They recognized that they had been with Jesus. ¹⁴ Seeing the man who was healed standing with them, they could say nothing against it. ¹⁵ But when they had commanded them to go aside out of the council, they conferred among themselves, ¹⁶ saying, "What shall we do to these men? Because indeed a notable miracle has been done through them, as can be plainly seen by all who dwell in Jerusalem, and we can't deny it. ¹⁷ But so that this spreads no further among the people, let's threaten them, that from now on they don't speak to anyone in this name." ¹⁸ They called them, and commanded them not to speak at all nor teach in the name of Jesus.

¹⁹ But Peter and John answered them, "Whether it is right in the sight of God to listen to you rather than to God, judge for yourselves, ²⁰ for we can't help telling the things which we saw and heard."

²¹ When they had further threatened them, they let them go, finding no way to punish them, because of the people; for everyone glorified God for that which was done. ²² For the man on whom this miracle of healing was performed was more than forty years old....

²⁹ Now, Lord, look at their threats, and grant to your servants to speak your word with all boldness, ³⁰ while you stretch out your hand to heal; and that signs and wonders may be done through the name of your holy Servant Jesus."

³¹ When they had prayed, the place was shaken where they were gathered together. They were all filled with the Holy Spirit, and they spoke the word of God with boldness.

Acts 19:8-11

⁸ He entered into the synagogue and spoke boldly for a period of three months, reasoning and persuading about the things concerning God's Kingdom.

⁹ But when some were hardened and disobedient, speaking evil of the Way before the multitude, he departed from them, and separated the disciples, reasoning daily in the school of Tyrannus. ¹⁰ This continued for two years, so that all those who lived in Asia heard the word of the Lord Jesus, both Jews and Greeks.

¹¹God worked special miracles by the hands of Paul,

- I decree and declare you are FANNING the FLAME, STIRRING UP God's GIFT within you. You are moving forth in God's Spirit in POWER, LOVE and SELF-DISCIPLINE. You are not ashamed of BEARING TESTIMONY to the Lord, accepting your share in suffering and disgrace for the sake of the Good News God will give you the STRENGTH you need.
- I decree and declare we are CALLED to a Life of HOLINESS as the People of God. It is not because of our deeds, but because of HIS OWN PURPOSE and the GRACE He gave to us who are UNITED WITH CHRIST JESUS/MESSIAH YESHUA.
- I decree and declare it is through the appearing of our Deliverer, Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, who ABOLISHED DEATH, that LIFE and IMMORTALITY were revealed through the GOOD NEWS. It is for this GOOD NEWS that we are each appointed PROCLAIMERS, EMISSARIES and TEACHERS to the World.
- I decree and declare you are ABLE to KEEP SAFE the GREAT TREASURE that has been entrusted to you, with the help of Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh, Who lives in you. You will continue to follow the sound teachings you have heard.
- I decree and declare BOLDLY the sick are HEALED, the dead RAISED because Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah, God's/Elohim's Son was RAISED FROM THE DEAD! Jesus/Yeshua is the STONE REJECTED by the World, THE CHIEF CORNERSTONE! There is SALVATION in NO ONE ELSE! There is no other name under Heaven given to mankind by whom we must be saved!

- I decree and declare our CITIES, REGIONS...the WORLD WILL SEE that REMARKABLE MIRACLES are taking place through the BOLD BELIEVERS in Christ/Messiah. The People cannot possibly deny God's Presence in their midst.
- I decree and declare you will LISTEN TO GOD rather than men when they warn you not to speak in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah. You will respond, "You must judge whether it is right in the SIGHT OF GOD to listen to you rather than God. As for us, we can't help talking about what we have actually seen and heard!"
- I decree and declare, as you FOLLOW the Spirit's/Ruach's leading, you will stand and speak with BOLDNESS, the Lord will ENABLE you to stretch out your hands to touch the those in need. God/Elohim is moving through you to HEAL and to do SIGNS and MIRACLES in the name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah!
- I decree and declare you will BOLDLY speak God's Word to persuade the People about the Kingdom of God. Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh will let you know when it is time to depart; when hearts and minds are no longer open to the Spirit, it is time to withdraw.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, December 10, 2018]

Everything You Put Your Hands to is Blessed!

Deuteronomy 28:1-14; Jeremiah 29:11-14; Joshua 1:6-9; 2 Corinthians 9:6-15; Philippians 4:10-20 (WEB)

Deuteronomy 28:1-14

It shall happen, if you shall listen diligently to Yahweh your God's voice, to observe to do all his commandments which I command you today, that Yahweh your God will set you high above all the nations of the earth.² All these blessings will come upon you, and overtake you, if you listen to Yahweh your God's voice. ³You shall be blessed in the city, and you shall be blessed in the field. ⁴You shall be blessed in the fruit of your body, the fruit of your ground, the fruit of your animals, the increase of your livestock, and the young of your flock. ⁵ Your basket and your kneading trough shall be blessed. ⁶ You shall be blessed when you come in, and you shall be blessed when you go out. ⁷ Yahweh will cause your enemies who rise up against you to be struck before you. They will come out against you one way, and will flee before you seven ways. ⁸Yahweh will command the blessing on you in your barns, and in all that you put your hand to. He will bless you in the land which Yahweh your God gives you. ⁹ Yahweh will establish you for a holy people to himself, as he has sworn to you, if you shall keep the commandments of Yahweh your God, and walk in his ways. ¹⁰ All the peoples of the earth shall see that you are called by Yahweh's name, and they will be afraid of you. ¹¹ Yahweh will grant you abundant prosperity in the fruit of your body, in the fruit of your livestock, and in the fruit of your ground, in the land which Yahweh swore to your fathers to give you. ¹² Yahweh will open to you his good treasure in the sky, to give the rain of your land in its season, and to bless all the work of your hand. You will lend to many nations, and you will not borrow. ¹³ Yahweh will make you the head, and not the tail. You will be above only, and you will not be beneath, if you listen to the commandments of Yahweh your God which I command you today, to observe and to do, ¹⁴ and shall not turn away from any of the words which I command you today, to the right hand or to the left, to go after other gods to serve them.

Jeremiah 29:11-14

¹¹ For I know the thoughts that I think toward you," says Yahweh, "thoughts of peace, and not of evil, to give you hope and a future. ¹² You shall call on me, and you shall go and pray to me, and I will listen to you. ¹³ You shall seek me, and find me, when you search for me with all your heart. ¹⁴ I will be found by you," says Yahweh, "and I will turn again your captivity, and I will gather you from all the nations, and from all the places where I have driven you, says Yahweh. I will bring you again to the place from where I caused you to be carried away captive."

Joshua 1:6-9

⁶ "Be strong and courageous; for you shall cause this people to inherit the land which I swore to their fathers to give them. ⁷ Only be strong and very courageous. Be careful to observe to do according to all the law which Moses my servant commanded you. Don't turn from it to the right hand or to the left, that you may have good success wherever you go. ⁸ This book of the law shall not depart from your mouth, but you shall meditate on it day and night, that you may observe to do according to all that is written in it; for then you shall make your way prosperous, and then you shall have good success. ⁹ Haven't I commanded you? Be strong and courageous. Don't be afraid. Don't be dismayed, for Yahweh your God is with you wherever you go."

2 Corinthians 9:6-15

⁶ Remember this: he who sows sparingly will also reap sparingly. He who sows bountifully will also reap bountifully. ⁷ Let each man give according as he has determined in his heart, not grudgingly or under

compulsion, for God loves a cheerful giver. ⁸ And God is able to make all grace abound to you, that you, always having all sufficiency in everything, may abound to every good work. ⁹ As it is written,

"He has scattered abroad. He has given to the poor. His righteousness remains forever."Psalm 112:9

¹⁰ Now may he who supplies seed to the sower and bread for food, supply and multiply your seed for sowing, and increase the fruits of your righteousness, ¹¹ you being enriched in everything to all generosity, which produces thanksgiving to God through us. ¹² For this service of giving that you perform not only makes up for lack among the saints, but abounds also through much giving of thanks to God, ¹³ seeing that through the proof given by this service, they glorify God for the obedience of your confession to the Good News of Christ and for the generosity of your contribution to them and to all, ¹⁴ while they themselves also, with supplication on your behalf, yearn for you by reason of the exceeding grace of God in you. ¹⁵ Now thanks be to God for his unspeakable gift!

Philippians 4:10-20

¹⁰ But I rejoice in the Lord greatly, that now at length you have revived your thought for me; in which you did indeed take thought, but you lacked opportunity. ¹¹ Not that I speak because of lack, for I have learned in whatever state I am, to be content in it. ¹² I know how to be humbled, and I also know how to abound. In everything and in all things I have learned the secret both to be filled and to be hungry, both to abound and to be in need. ¹³ I can do all things through Christ, who strengthens me. ¹⁴ However you did well that you shared in my affliction. ¹⁵ You yourselves also know, you Philippians, that in the beginning of the Good News, when I departed from Macedonia, no assembly shared with me in the matter of giving and receiving but you only. ¹⁶ For even in Thessalonica you sent once and again to my need. ¹⁷ Not that I seek for the gift, but I seek for the fruit that increases to your account. ¹⁸ But I have all things and abound. I am filled, having received from Epaphroditus the things that came from you, a sweet-smelling fragrance, an acceptable and well-pleasing sacrifice to God. ¹⁹ My God will supply every need of yours according to his riches in glory in Christ Jesus. ²⁰ Now to our God and Father be the glory forever and ever! Amen.

- I decree and declare to ALL who take care to LISTEN OBEDIENTLY to the Voice of the Lord, taking care to do all of His Commandments, the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheykha will SET YOU ON HIGH – above all Nations of the Earth! Then ALL THESE BLESSINGS will come upon you and OVERTAKE YOU, because you LISTEN TO THE VOICE OF THE LORD YOUR GOD/ADONAI ELOHEYKHA!
- I decree and declare to the OBEDIENT, the Lord/Adonai COMMANDS THE BLESSING on you in your barns and in EVERY UNDERTAKING OF YOUR HAND, and He will BLESS you in the Land that He gives you.
- I decree and declare the Lord our God/Adonai Eloheinu is ESTABLISHING US AS A HOLY PEOPLE FOR HIMSELF, as we keep His Commandments of the Lord/Adonai and WALK IN HIS WAYS! By

this ALL THE PEOPLES OF THE EARTH WILL SEE that we are called by the Name of the Lord/Adonai and they will stand in AWE of us!

- I decree and declare and PRAISE YOUR NAME, LORD/ADONAI, that YOU will make me OVERFLOW IN PROSPERITY in the place that you have caused me to dwell. You, Lord/Adonai, will open for me Your Good STOREHOUSE – the heavens – to give rain for my land in its season and to BLESS ALL THE WORK OF MY HAND.
- I decree and declare, by the Word of the Lord/Adonai, His PLANS FOR ME ARE FOR PEACE/SHALOM and not calamity – to give me a FUTURE and HOPE! I CALL ON THE LORD/ADONAI and PRAY to Him, and HE LISTENS TO ME! I SEARCH for God with all my Heart and I FIND HIM because I search for Him with all my Heart!
- I decree and declare I AM STRONG in the Might and Power of my Lord, Jesus Christ/Adonai, Yeshua the Messiah! I will INSTRUCT and LEAD the People to INHERIT the Land of God's PROMISE! I AM VERY STRONG and resolute to OBSERVE GOD'S/ELOHIM'S WORD; I will not turn from it to the right or the left, but I will remain FOCUSED and DILIGENT to FOLLOW my God/Elohai so that I WILL BE SUCCESSFUL wherever I go.
- I decree and declare I MEDITATE ON THE HOLY SCRIPTURES DAY AND NIGHT! They do not depart from my mouth, so that I am CAREFUL TO DO EVERYTHING written them. By holding the Scriptures close in this way, I make my ways PROSPEROUS and I am SUCCESSFUL. I am STRONG! I will not be terrified or dismayed, for the Lord my God/Adonai Elohai is with me wherever I go!
- I decree and declare I am CHEERFUL in giving to others; by doing so, GOD IS ABLE TO MAKE ALL GRACE OVERFLOW TO ME, so that by always having enough of everything, I will OVERFLOW in every good work!
- I decree and declare the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Who SUPPLIES seed to the sower and bread for food, SUPPLIES and MULTIPLIES my seed and INCREASES THE HARVEST of my Righteousness. I am ENRICHED in EVERYTHING for all GENEROSITY, which brings Thanksgiving to God/Elohim.
- I decree and declare I know what it is to live with HUMBLE MEANS and I know what it is to live in PROSPERITY. In any and every circumstance I have learned the SECRET of CONTENTMENT – both to be filled and to go hungry, to have abundance and to suffer need. I CAN DO ALL THINGS THROUGH CHRIST/MESSIAH Who strengthens me.
- I decree and declare YOU who set your hand to give and assist the Ministers and Servants of the Gospel, share in the trouble and REWARD of our efforts. In this way the FRUIT of our efforts OVERFLOWS TO YOUR CREDIT. My God/Elohai will FULFILL EVERY NEED of yours according to the RICHES OF HIS GLORY in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua. To our God/Eloheinu and Father be the GLORY FOREVER AND EVER! AMEN!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 11, 2020]

By Faith I Move Forth in God's Call!

Philippians 4:14-20; Hebrews 11:6-10; Psalm 84:1-12; Matthew 21:21-22; Ephesians 3:8-21 (WEB)

Philippians 4:14-20

¹⁴ However you did well that you shared in my affliction. ¹⁵ You yourselves also know, you Philippians, that in the beginning of the Good News, when I departed from Macedonia, no assembly shared with me in the matter of giving and receiving but you only. ¹⁶ For even in Thessalonica you sent once and again to my need. ¹⁷ Not that I seek for the gift, but I seek for the fruit that increases to your account. ¹⁸ But I have all things and abound. I am filled, having received from Epaphroditus the things that came from you, a sweet-smelling fragrance, an acceptable and well-pleasing sacrifice to God. ¹⁹ My God will supply every need of yours according to his riches in glory in Christ Jesus. ²⁰ Now to our God and Father be the glory forever and ever! Amen.

Hebrews 11:6-10

⁶ Without faith it is impossible to be well pleasing to him, for he who comes to God must believe that he exists, and that he is a rewarder of those who seek him.

⁷ By faith, Noah, being warned about things not yet seen, moved with godly fear, prepared a ship for the saving of his house, through which he condemned the world, and became heir of the righteousness which is according to faith.

⁸ By faith, Abraham, when he was called, obeyed to go out to the place which he was to receive for an inheritance. He went out, not knowing where he went. ⁹ By faith, he lived as an alien in the land of promise, as in a land not his own, dwelling in tents with Isaac and Jacob, the heirs with him of the same promise. ¹⁰ For he looked for the city which has the foundations, whose builder and maker is God.

Psalm 84:1-12

¹ How lovely are your dwellings, Yahweh of Armies! ² My soul longs, and even faints for the courts of Yahweh. My heart and my flesh cry out for the living God. ³ Yes, the sparrow has found a home, and the swallow a nest for herself, where she may have her young, near your altars, Yahweh of Armies, my King, and my God. ⁴ Blessed are those who dwell in your house. They are always praising you. *Selah.* ⁵ Blessed are those whose strength is in you, who have set their hearts on a pilgrimage. ⁶ Passing through the valley of Weeping, they make it a place of springs. Yes, the autumn rain covers it with blessings. ⁷ They go from strength to strength. Every one of them appears before God in Zion. ⁸ Yahweh, God of Armies, hear my prayer. Listen, God of Jacob. *Selah.* ⁹ Behold, God our shield, look at the face of your anointed. ¹⁰ For a day in your courts is better than a thousand. I would rather be a doorkeeper in the house of my God, than to dwell in the tents of wickedness. ¹¹ For Yahweh God is a sun and a shield. Yahweh will give grace and glory. He withholds no good thing from those who walk blamelessly. ¹² Yahweh of Armies, blessed is the man who trusts in you.

Matthew 21:21-22

²¹ Jesus answered them, "Most certainly I tell you, if you have faith and don't doubt, you will not only do what was done to the fig tree, but even if you told this mountain, 'Be taken up and cast into the sea,' it would be done. ²² All things, whatever you ask in prayer, believing, you will receive."

Ephesians 3:8-21

⁸To me, the very least of all saints, was this grace given, to preach to the Gentiles the unsearchable riches of Christ, ⁹ and to make all men see what is the administration of the mystery which for ages has been hidden in God, who created all things through Jesus Christ, ¹⁰ to the intent that now through the assembly the manifold wisdom of God might be made known to the principalities and the powers in the heavenly places, ¹¹ according to the eternal purpose which he accomplished in Christ Jesus our Lord. ¹² In him we have boldness and access in confidence through our faith in him. ¹³ Therefore I ask that you may not lose heart at my troubles for you, which are your glory.

¹⁴ For this cause, I bow my knees to the Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, ¹⁵ from whom every family in heaven and on earth is named, ¹⁶ that he would grant you, according to the riches of his glory, that you may be strengthened with power through his Spirit in the inner person, ¹⁷ that Christ may dwell in your hearts through faith, to the end that you, being rooted and grounded in love, ¹⁸ may be strengthened to comprehend with all the saints what is the width and length and height and depth, ¹⁹ and to know Christ's love which surpasses knowledge, that you may be filled with all the fullness of God.

²⁰ Now to him who is able to do exceedingly abundantly above all that we ask or think, according to the power that works in us, ²¹ to him be the glory in the assembly and in Christ Jesus to all generations forever and ever. Amen.

- I decree and declare I am HONORED to help those who SHARE the Gospel of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah AROUND THE WORLD! God keeps records of my account: the FRUIT of my giving OVERFLOWS to my CREDIT.
- I decree and declare those who MINISTER WITHOUT RESTRAINT, SELFLESSLY, have MORE THAN ENOUGH, being AMPLY SUPPLIED, having received from the Lord's STOREHOUSE, the gifts stored up for them; coming also from faithful brethren – a FRAGRANT AROMA, an acceptable SACRIFICE, pleasing to God/Elohim!
- I decree and declare my God/Elohim will FULFILL EVERY NEED OF YOURS according to the RICHES OF HIS GLORY in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua! To our God/Elohim and Father be the GLORY FOREVER and EVER! Amen!
- I decree and declare I COME TO GOD/ELOHIM with FAITH; I believe He exists and that HE IS A REWARDER OF THOSE WHO SEEK HIM! Our FAITH IS WALKED OUT as we obey the Lord/Adonai in all things that He has COMMANDED us.
- I decree and declare that by FAITH I walk in OBEDIENCE and become an heir of the RIGHTEOUSNESS that comes by FAITH. As Abraham, I GO – WALKING IN FAITH, not knowing where I am going. By FAITH I follow the Lord's leading and receive the FULFILLMENT of His PROMISES.

- I decree and declare my Soul YEARNS, EVEN FAINTS, for the Courts of the Lord/Adonai. My Heart and my Flesh sing for JOY to the Living God/Elohim. I have no desire to go anywhere You, Lord/Adonai, do not lead me. I DESIRE ONLY TO REMAIN IN YOUR PRESENCE – IN YOUR WILL! For a day in Your Courts is better than a thousand anywhere else. I would rather stand at the threshold of the House of my God/Elohim than dwell in the tents of wickedness.
- I decree and declare You, Lord God/Adonai Elohim, are a Sun and a Shield. You give GRACE and GLORY. NO GOOD THING WILL YOU WITHHOLD FROM THOSE WHO WALK UPRIGHTLY! You, Lord of Hosts/Adonai Tzva'ot, BLESS those who TRUST in YOU!
- I decree and declare if you have FAITH and do not doubt, not only will YOU DO what was done to the fig tree, but even if you say to this Mountain, "Be taken up and thrown into the sea," it will happen! And WHATEVER YOU ASK IN PRAYER, TRUSTING, YOU SHALL RECEIVE."
- I decree and declare it is my JOY to proclaim the ENDLESS RICHES of Christ/Messiah and to bring to light the PLAN of the MYSTERY – which for ages was hidden in God/Elohim, Who Created all things. The PURPOSE is that through Christ's/Messiah's Community the multifaceted WISDOM of God/Elohim might be made KNOWN to the rulers and authorities in the heavenly places, which is in keeping with the Eternal Purpose that He carried out in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua our Lord/Adonai!
- I decree and declare in Christ/Messiah I have BOLDNESS and ACCESS with CONFIDENCE THROUGH TRUSTING IN HIM! God/Elohim, my Father, will GRANT ME TO BE STRENGTHENED IN MY INNER BEING WITH POWER THROUGH HIS SPIRIT/RUACH, so that Christ may dwell in my heart through FAITH. I AM ROOTED AND GROUNDED IN LOVE and have STRENGTH to grasp with all the Believers what is the width and length and height and depth, and to KNOW the LOVE of Christ/Messiah which SURPASSES KNOWLEDGE, so that I may be FILLED UP WITH ALL THE FULLNESS OF GOD/ELOHIM!
- I decree and declare to HIM WHO IS ABLE to do far BEYOND ALL THAT WE ASK OR IMAGINE, by means of His Power that works in us, to Him be the GLORY in the Community of Believers and in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua throughout all generations FOREVER AND EVER! Amen!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, September 20, 2019]

Bold

Boldness to Move Through the Enemy's Camp!

1 Kings 18:20-26, 30-40; Proverbs 28:1-10; 2 Corinthians 10:1-6, 17; 11:10-14, 21-33; 13:1-10 (WEB)

1 Kings 18:20-26, 30-40

²⁰ So Ahab sent to all the children of Israel, and gathered the prophets together to Mount Carmel. ²¹ Elijah came near to all the people, and said, "How long will you waver between the two sides? If Yahweh is God, follow him; but if Baal, then follow him."

The people didn't say a word.

²² Then Elijah said to the people, "I, even I only, am left as a prophet of Yahweh; but Baal's prophets are four hundred fifty men. ²³ Let them therefore give us two bulls; and let them choose one bull for themselves, and cut it in pieces, and lay it on the wood, and put no fire under; and I will dress the other bull, and lay it on the wood, and put no fire under it. ²⁴ You call on the name of your god, and I will call on Yahweh's name. The God who answers by fire, let him be God."

All the people answered, "What you say is good."

²⁵ Elijah said to the prophets of Baal, "Choose one bull for yourselves, and dress it first; for you are many; and call on the name of your god, but put no fire under it."

²⁶ They took the bull which was given them, and they dressed it, and called on the name of Baal from morning even until noon, saying, "Baal, hear us!" But there was no voice, and nobody answered. They leaped about the altar which was made.

Proverbs 28:1-10

¹The wicked flee when no one pursues; but the righteous are as bold as a lion. ²In rebellion, a land has many rulers, but order is maintained by a man of understanding and knowledge. ³A needy man who oppresses the poor is like a driving rain which leaves no crops. ⁴Those who forsake the law praise the wicked; but those who keep the law contend with them. ⁵Evil men don't understand justice; but those who seek Yahweh understand it fully. ⁶Better is the poor who walks in his integrity, than he who is perverse in his ways, and he is rich. ⁷Whoever keeps the law is a wise son; but he who is a companion of gluttons shames his father. ⁸He who increases his wealth by excessive interest gathers it for one who has pity on the poor. ⁹He who turns away his ear from hearing the law, even his prayer is an abomination. ¹⁰Whoever causes the upright to go astray in an evil way, he will fall into his own trap; but the blameless will inherit good.

2 Corinthians 10:1-6, 17

¹Now I Paul, myself, entreat you by the humility and gentleness of Christ, I who in your presence am lowly among you, but being absent am bold toward you. ²Yes, I beg you that I may not, when present, show courage with the confidence with which I intend to be bold against some, who consider us to be walking according to the flesh. ³ For though we walk in the flesh, we don't wage war according to the flesh; ⁴ for the weapons of our warfare are not of the flesh, but mighty before God to the throwing down of strongholds, ⁵ throwing down imaginations and every high thing that is exalted against the knowledge of God and bringing every thought into captivity to the obedience of Christ, ⁶ and being in readiness to avenge all disobedience when your obedience is made full....

¹⁷ But "he who boasts, let him boast in the Lord." [Jeremiah 9:24]

2 Corinthians 11:10-14, 21-33

¹⁰ As the truth of Christ is in me, no one will stop me from this boasting in the regions of Achaia. ¹¹ Why? Because I don't love you? God knows. ¹² But what I do, that I will do, that I may cut off occasion from those who desire an occasion, that in which they boast, they may be found even as we. ¹³ For such men are false apostles, deceitful workers, masquerading as Christ's apostles. ¹⁴ And no wonder, for even Satan masquerades as an angel of light....

²¹ I speak by way of disparagement, as though we had been weak. Yet in whatever way anyone is bold (I speak in foolishness), I am bold also. ²² Are they Hebrews? So am I. Are they Israelites? So am I. Are they the offspring of Abraham? So am I. ²³ Are they servants of Christ? (I speak as one beside himself.) I am more so: in labors more abundantly, in prisons more abundantly, in stripes above measure, and in deaths often. ²⁴ Five times I received forty stripes minus one from the Jews. ²⁵ Three times I was beaten with rods. Once I was stoned. Three times I suffered shipwreck. I have been a night and a day in the deep. ²⁶ I have been in travels often, perils of rivers, perils of robbers, perils from my countrymen, perils from the Gentiles, perils in the city, perils in the wilderness, perils in the sea, perils among false brothers; ²⁷ in labor and travail, in watchings often, in hunger and thirst, in fastings often, and in cold and nakedness.

²⁸ Besides those things that are outside, there is that which presses on me daily: anxiety for all the assemblies. ²⁹ Who is weak, and I am not weak? Who is caused to stumble, and I don't burn with indignation? ³⁰ If I must boast, I will boast of the things that concern my weakness. ³¹ The God and Father of the Lord Jesus Christ, he who is blessed forever more, knows that I don't lie. ³² In Damascus the governor under King Aretas guarded the Damascenes' city, desiring to arrest me. ³³ I was let down in a basket through a window by the wall, and escaped his hands.

2 Corinthians 13:1-10

¹This is the third time I am coming to you. "At the mouth of two or three witnesses shall every word be established." [Deuteronomy 19:15] ²I have said beforehand, and I do say beforehand, as when I was present the second time, so now, being absent, I write to those who have sinned before now, and to all the rest, that, if I come again, I will not spare; ³ seeing that you seek a proof of Christ who speaks in me; who toward you is not weak, but is powerful in you. ⁴ For he was crucified through weakness, yet he lives through the power of God. For we also are weak in him, but we will live with him through the power of God toward you. ⁵ Examine your own selves, whether you are in the faith. Test your own selves. Or don't you know about your own selves, that Jesus Christ is in you?—unless indeed you are disqualified. ⁶ But I hope that you will know that we aren't disqualified.

⁷ Now I pray to God that you do no evil; not that we may appear approved, but that you may do that which is honorable, though we are as reprobate. ⁸ For we can do nothing against the truth, but for the truth. ⁹ For we rejoice when we are weak and you are strong. We also pray for this: your becoming perfect. ¹⁰ For this cause I write these things while absent, that I may not deal sharply when present, according to the authority which the Lord gave me for building up, and not for tearing down.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms

to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare IN OBEDIENCE Elijah went to Ahab; and IN OBEDIENCE Elijah went to Mount Carmel and called the Children of Israel and the Prophets of Baal. As Elijah MOVED in OBEDIENCE he was filled with BOLDNESS to carry out the Lord's/Adonai's Command. As you move in OBEDIENCE, the Lord/Adonai FILLS YOU WITH HIS HOLY BOLDNESS!
- I decree and declare, as the Lord/Adonai LEADS, YOU WILL CHALLENGE the spirits of darkness working in your midst. Because you have stepped out in FAITH and BOLDNESS, in the places near you, the Lord/Adonai is SENDING YOU TO THE NATIONS, to places many will avoid because of FEAR. But YOU DO NOT FEAR; YOU MOVE FORWARD IN FAITH, as the Lord DIRECTS. You say in your Heart, "Here I am Lord, SEND ME!" (Isaiah 6:8)
- I decree and declare you will WALK in BOLDNESS that the VOICE of God/Elohim will be heard on the Earth and the People will KNOW HE, THE LORD/ADONAI, IS GOD/ELOHIM!
- I decree and declare the RIGHTEOUS of the Lord/Adonai are as BOLD as a Lion! A Country that has a Man of DISCERNMENT and KNOWLEDGE in leadership MAINTAINS ORDER! We PRAISE You Lord God/Adonai Elohim for leading this Nation.
- I decree and declare you who KNOW and OBEY the Scriptures STIR UP the wicked in the Land. You do not praise them but bring them to accountability. Evil men do not understand Justice, but those who SEEK the Lord/Adonai UNDERSTAND IT FULLY!
- I decree and declare BETTER is the Poor who walks in INTEGRITY than the Rich whose ways are crooked. He who KEEPS God's Word is a discerning Child!
- I decree and declare those who increase their WEALTH by exorbitant interest, GATHERS IT FOR ONE KINDER to the Poor! The Blameless will INHERIT GOOD! We praise the Lord/Adonai and CALL into our accounts the WEALTH of the wicked that it may be used for the Work of the Kingdom as the Lord/Adonai directs.
- I decree and declare, though we walk in the flesh, WE DO NOT WAGE WAR ACCORDING TO THE FLESH. For the weapons of our warfare are not fleshly but POWERFUL through God/Elohim for the TEARING DOWN OF SPIRITUAL STRONGHOLDS. We are tearing down false arguments and every high-minded thing that exalts itself against the knowledge of God/Elohim. We are taking every thought captive to the OBEDIENCE of Christ/Messiah. It is not the one who commends himself who is approved, but the ONE WHOM THE LORD COMMENDS!
- I decree and declare to the Servants of the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah: YOU WILL NOT KEEP SILENT! You continue to speak forth the TRUTH of God's Word that you may cut off the opportunity from those who want an opportunity to boast in what they call the truth but is a lie. For they are false apostles, deceitful workers masquerading as Christ's/Messiah's apostles. And no wonder, for even satan masquerades as an angel of light. It is no great thing therefore if his servants also masquerade as servants of righteousness. Their end will be according to their deeds.

- I decree and declare that there will be TRIALS and PERSECUTIONS as you fulfill the CALL of God on your life and for this generation. If you must boast, boast in your weakness and in the STRENGTH of the Lord/Adonai. It is by His LOVE, PEACE and STRENGTH that you continue the race until the end.
- I decree and declare that Christ/Messiah is speaking through me. He is not weak toward you, but POWERFUL among you. For He was crucified in weakness, yet HE LIVES through the POWER of God/Elohim For, we also are weak in Him, yet we shall LIVE with Him by God's/Elohim's POWER toward you! TEST YOURSELVES, to see whether you are in the Faith. EXAMINE YOURSELVES!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, November 16, 2019]

God's Sovereignty, Protection & Deliverance!

2 Samuel 22:2-31; Psalm 140:1-13; Proverbs 3:1-6; 4:5-13; 2 Thessalonians 3:2-5 (WEB)

2 Samuel 22:2-31

² and he said:

"Yahweh is my rock, my fortress, and my deliverer, even mine; ³God is my rock in whom I take refuge; my shield, and the horn of my salvation, my high tower, and my refuge. My savior, you save me from violence. ⁴I call on Yahweh, who is worthy to be praised; So shall I be saved from my enemies. ⁵ For the waves of death surrounded me. The floods of ungodliness made me afraid. ⁶The cords of Sheol were around me. The snares of death caught me. ⁷ In my distress, I called on Yahweh. Yes, I called to my God. He heard my voice out of his temple. My cry came into his ears. ⁸Then the earth shook and trembled. The foundations of heaven guaked and were shaken, because he was angry. ⁹Smoke went up out of his nostrils. Consuming fire came out of his mouth. Coals were kindled by it. ¹⁰ He bowed the heavens also, and came down. Thick darkness was under his feet. ¹¹He rode on a cherub, and flew. Yes, he was seen on the wings of the wind. ¹² He made darkness a shelter around himself: gathering of waters, and thick clouds of the skies. ¹³ At the brightness before him, coals of fire were kindled. ¹⁴ Yahweh thundered from heaven. The Most High uttered his voice. ¹⁵ He sent out arrows and scattered them, lightning and confused them. ¹⁶ Then the channels of the sea appeared. The foundations of the world were laid bare by Yahweh's rebuke, at the blast of the breath of his nostrils. ¹⁷ He sent from on high and he took me. He drew me out of many waters.

¹⁸ He delivered me from my strong enemy,

from those who hated me, for they were too mighty for me.

¹⁹ They came on me in the day of my calamity, but Yahweh was my support.

²⁰ He also brought me out into a large place. He delivered me, because he delighted in me.

²¹ Yahweh rewarded me according to my righteousness. He rewarded me according to the cleanness of my hands.

²² For I have kept Yahweh's ways,

and have not wickedly departed from my God.

²³ For all his ordinances were before me.

As for his statutes, I didn't depart from them.

²⁴ I was also perfect toward him.

I kept myself from my iniquity.

²⁵ Therefore Yahweh has rewarded me according to my righteousness, According to my cleanness in his eyesight.

- ²⁶ With the merciful you will show yourself merciful. With the perfect man you will show yourself perfect.
- ²⁷ With the pure you will show yourself pure.

With the crooked you will show yourself shrewd.

²⁸ You will save the afflicted people,

But your eyes are on the arrogant, that you may bring them down.

²⁹ For you are my lamp, Yahweh.

Yahweh will light up my darkness.

³⁰ For by you, I run against a troop. By my God, I leap over a wall.

³¹ As for God, his way is perfect.Yahweh's word is tested.He is a shield to all those who take refuge in him.

Psalm 140:1-13

Deliver me, Yahweh, from the evil man.

Preserve me from the violent man:

² those who devise mischief in their hearts.

- They continually gather themselves together for war.
- ³They have sharpened their tongues like a serpent. Viper's poison is under their lips. *Selah*.

4) where the base we from the bands of the wish

⁴Yahweh, keep me from the hands of the wicked.

Preserve me from the violent men who have determined to trip my feet.

- ⁵The proud have hidden a snare for me, they have spread the cords of a net by the path. They have set traps for me. *Selah.*
- ⁶I said to Yahweh, "You are my God."

Listen to the cry of my petitions, Yahweh.

⁷Yahweh, the Lord, the strength of my salvation,

you have covered my head in the day of battle.

⁸Yahweh, don't grant the desires of the wicked. Don't let their evil plans succeed, or they will become proud. *Selah.* ⁹As for the head of those who surround me,

let the mischief of their own lips cover them.

¹⁰ Let burning coals fall on them.

Let them be thrown into the fire,

into miry pits, from where they never rise.

¹¹ An evil speaker won't be established in the earth. Evil will hunt the violent man to overthrow him.

¹² I know that Yahweh will maintain the cause of the afflicted, and justice for the needy.

¹³ Surely the righteous will give thanks to your name. The upright will dwell in your presence.

Proverbs 3:1-6

My son, don't forget my teaching; but let your heart keep my commandments:

² for they will add to you length of days, years of life, and peace.

³ Don't let kindness and truth forsake you. Bind them around your neck.

Write them on the tablet of your heart.

⁴So you will find favor,

and good understanding in the sight of God and man.

⁵ Trust in Yahweh with all your heart,

and don't lean on your own understanding.

⁶ In all your ways acknowledge him, and he will make your paths straight.

Proverbs 4:5-13

⁵Get wisdom.

Get understanding.

Don't forget, and don't deviate from the words of my mouth.

⁶ Don't forsake her, and she will preserve you.

Love her, and she will keep you.

⁷Wisdom is supreme.

Get wisdom.

Yes, though it costs all your possessions, get understanding.

⁸Esteem her, and she will exalt you.

She will bring you to honor when you embrace her.

⁹She will give to your head a garland of grace.

She will deliver a crown of splendor to you."

¹⁰ Listen, my son, and receive my sayings. The years of your life will be many.

¹¹ have taught you in the way of wisdom.

I have led you in straight paths.

¹² When you go, your steps will not be hampered.

When you run, you will not stumble.

¹³ Take firm hold of instruction.

Don't let her go. Keep her, for she is your life.

2 Thessalonians 3:2-5

² and that we may be delivered from unreasonable and evil men; for not all have faith. ³ But the Lord is faithful, who will establish you and guard you from the evil one. ⁴ We have confidence in the Lord concerning you, that you both do and will do the things we command. ⁵ May the Lord direct your hearts into God's love, and into the perseverance of Christ.

- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is my ROCK, He is my FORTRESS and my DELIVERER! My God/Elohai is my ROCK, in Him I take REFUGE, my SHIELD, my HORN of SALVATION, my STRONGHOLD and my REFUGE, my SAVIOR –You, Lord/Adonai, SAVE ME from violence!
- I decree and declare the Lord my God/Adonai Elohai HEARS MY CRY of distress; my cry comes into His ears. Then the Earth rocks and quakes, the Foundation of Heaven trembles. They reel because He is angry. Smoke rises from His nostrils and CONSUMING FIRE from His Mouth. Coals blazed from Him. He parts the Heavens and came down, with thick darkness under His Feet.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is my SUPPORT, when the enemy comes against me in the day of calamity. He brings me OUT to a wide-open place. HE RESCUES ME since HE DELIGHTS in me.
- I decree and declare by Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh I am given the STRENGTH to walk RIGHTEOUSLY before my God/Elohai. I keep the WAYS of the Lord/Adonai and do not turn wickedly from Him. For all His JUDGMENTS are before me. As for His RULINGS, I do not turn away from them. As for God/Elohim, HIS WAY IS PERFECT. The Word of the Lord/Adonai is PURE. He is a SHIELD to all who take refuge in Him.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai RESCUES me from the evil man; He PROTECTS me from the violent men who devise evil in their heart. God Almighty/El Shaddai KEEPS ME SAFE from the clutches of the wicked. He PROTECTS me from the man of violence who plans to push me off my feet.
- I decree and declare God/Elohim, my Lord/Adonai, is the STRENGTH of my DELIVERANCE, He SHIELDS my head in the day of battle. He will not grant the desires of the wicked nor let their evil plan succeed.
- I decree and declare the CONVICTION will come upon those who surround me; may their hearts and ears be OPEN to the TRUTH of the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah. For those who choose not to turn, may the mischief of their lips OVERWHELM then. May a slanderer NOT ENDURE in the Land. May calamity hunt down a violent man. The Lord/Adonai

VINDICATES the Poor and SECURES JUSTICE for the Needy. The RIGHTEOUS ONES PRAISE THE NAME OF THE LORD/ADONAI!

- I decree and declare my Heart will keep the Commands of the Lord; length of days and years of life, and Peace/Shalom will be added to me. KINDNESS and TRUTH will never leave me I BIND THEM around my neck and WRITE them on the Tablet of my Heart!
- I decree and declare I TRUST in the Lord/Adonai with ALL MY HEART and do not lean on my own understanding. In all my Ways I will ACKNOWLEDGE Him, knowing that HE WILL MAKE MY PATHS STRAIGHT!
- I decree and declare WISDOM is supreme! I will acquire Wisdom; with all my acquisitions, I will get UNDERSTANDING. I will prize her and she will exalt me. She will honor me when I embrace her. She will set a garland of GRACE on my head and she will give me a Crown of Glory. I have been instructed in the Way of Wisdom and guided along STRAIGHT PATHS. As I walk, my step will not be hindered, and when I run, I will not stumble.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai RESCUES me from perverse and evil people, for not all are trustworthy. But the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah is TRUSTWORTHY and He STRENGTHENS and PROTECTS me from the evil one. I have CONFIDENCE in the Lord and I will PERSEVERE in doing what He COMMANDS. The Lord/Adonai DIRECTS my heart into the LOVE of God/Elohim and into the PATIENCE of Christ/Messiah.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, July 11, 2019]

I Am at Peace for I Am Surrounded By a Wall of Fire!

Zechariah 2:3-5; 2 Kings 19:34-37; Psalm 35:1-8; 91:1-16; 103:17-22 (WEB)

Zechariah 2:3-5

³ Behold, the angel who talked with me went out, and another angel went out to meet him, ⁴ and said to him, "Run, speak to this young man, saying, 'Jerusalem will be inhabited as villages without walls, because of the multitude of men and livestock in it. ⁵ For I,' says Yahweh, 'will be to her a wall of fire around it, and I will be the glory in the middle of her.

Psalm 91:1-16

He who dwells in the secret place of the Most High will rest in the shadow of the Almighty.

² I will say of Yahweh, "He is my refuge and my fortress; my God, in whom I trust."

³ For he will deliver you from the snare of the fowler, and from the deadly pestilence.

⁴ He will cover you with his feathers. Under his wings you will take refuge. His faithfulness is your shield and rampart.

⁵ You shall not be afraid of the terror by night, nor of the arrow that flies by day,

⁶ nor of the pestilence that walks in darkness, nor of the destruction that wastes at noonday.

⁷ A thousand may fall at your side, and ten thousand at your right hand; but it will not come near you.

⁸You will only look with your eyes, and see the recompense of the wicked.

⁹ Because you have made Yahweh your refuge, and the Most High your dwelling place,

¹⁰ no evil shall happen to you, neither shall any plague come near your dwelling.

¹¹For he will put his angels in charge of you,

to guard you in all your ways.

¹² They will bear you up in their hands,

so that you won't dash your foot against a stone.

¹³ You will tread on the lion and cobra.

You will trample the young lion and the serpent underfoot.

¹⁴ "Because he has set his love on me, therefore I will deliver him.

I will set him on high, because he has known my name.

¹⁵He will call on me, and I will answer him.

I will be with him in trouble.

I will deliver him, and honor him.

¹⁶ I will satisfy him with long life, and show him my salvation."

2 Kings 19:34-37

³⁴ 'For I will defend this city to save it, for my own sake, and for my servant David's sake.'"

³⁵ That night, Yahweh's angel went out, and struck one hundred eighty-five thousand in the camp of the Assyrians. When men arose early in the morning, behold, these were all dead bodies. ³⁶ So Sennacherib king of Assyria departed, and went and returned, and lived at Nineveh. ³⁷ As he was worshiping in the house of Nisroch his god, Adrammelech and Sharezer struck him with the sword; and they escaped into the land of Ararat. Esar Haddon his son reigned in his place.

Psalm 35:1-8

Contend, Yahweh, with those who contend with me.

Fight against those who fight against me.

² Take hold of shield and buckler,

and stand up for my help.

³ Brandish the spear and block those who pursue me.

Tell my soul, "I am your salvation."

⁴ Let those who seek after my soul be disappointed and brought to dishonor.

Let those who plot my ruin be turned back and confounded.

⁵Let them be as chaff before the wind,

Yahweh's angel driving them on.

⁶Let their way be dark and slippery,

Yahweh's angel pursuing them.

⁷ For without cause they have hidden their net in a pit for me.

Without cause they have dug a pit for my soul.

⁸ Let destruction come on him unawares. Let his net that he has hidden catch himself.

Let him fall into that destruction.

Psalm 103:17-22

¹⁷ But Yahweh's loving kindness is from everlasting to everlasting with those who fear him, his righteousness to children's children,

¹⁸ to those who keep his covenant,

to those who remember to obey his precepts.

¹⁹Yahweh has established his throne in the heavens.

His kingdom rules over all.

- ²⁰ Praise Yahweh, you angels of his, who are mighty in strength, who fulfill his word, obeying the voice of his word.
- ²¹ Praise Yahweh, all you armies of his, you servants of his, who do his pleasure.

²² Praise Yahweh, all you works of his,

in all places of his dominion.

Praise Yahweh, my soul!

- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is for you a WALL of FIRE surrounding you; and He is the GLORY within you!
- I decree and declare you LIVE in the SHELTER of the Most High/'Elyon, and SPEND your Nights in the SHADOW of the Almighty/Shaddai! You declare to the Lord/Adonai, "My REFUGE! My FORTRESS! My God, in Whom I TRUST!
- I decree and declare and PRAISE Your Name Lord/Adonai for You RESCUE me from the trap of the hunter and from the plague of calamities; You COVER me with Your PINIONS, and I find REFUGE under Your WINGS; Your TRUTH is my SHIELD and PROTECTION!
- I decree and declare I AM SAFE! A thousand my fall at my side, ten thousand at my right hand, but it won't come near me! I will KEEP MY EYES OPEN and SEE how the wicked are PUNISHED; they will be CRUSHED and DESTROYED by the Hand of the Lord/Adonai.
- I decree and declare God's/Elohim's Angels CARE for me and GUARD me wherever I go. They CARRY me in their hands, so that I won't trip. I TREAD DOWN lions and snakes, young lions and serpents – I TRAMPLE them underfoot.
- I decree and declare God Almighty/El Shaddai says to you, "Because you LOVE Me, I will RESCUE you; because you KNOW My Name, I will PROTECT you. When you CALL on Me, I WILL ANSWER YOU. I will be with you when you are in trouble. I WILL EXTRICATE YOU and BRING YOU HONOR!
- I decree and declare the Lord DEFENDS you, His Chosen People, and SAVES you, for His own sake. In the night the Angel of the Lord/Adonai will strike down your enemies. They have no defense against the SOVEREIGNTY of the Lord Most High/Adonai 'Elyon.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai OPPOSES those who oppose me; He FIGHTS AGAINST those who fight against me. The Lord is my DEFENSE, with SHIELD and BATTLE AXE He cuts down my pursuers. The Lord is MY SALVATION!
- I decree and declare that those who seek my life will be DISGRACED and put into CONFUSION; those who are plotting harm for me will be REPULSED and PUT to SHAME! They are like chaff before the Wind with the Angel of the Lord/Adonai driving them on.
- I decree and declare those who have hid their nets over a pit; unprovoked, they dug it for me, will be OVERCOME and DESTROYED: the net they concealed will CATCH themselves!
- I decree and declare the MERCY of the Lord/Adonai is from Eternity Past to Eternity Future upon those who FEAR Him, and His RIGHTEOUSNESS extends to his Children's children, provided they KEEP His COVENANT and remember to FOLLOW His precepts.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai has ESTABLISHED His Throne in Heaven; His Kingly POWER Rules Everything! His Angels BLESS Him; His Angels, the Mighty Warriors who OBEY His Word, who CARRY OUT His ORDERS!

I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 10, 2019]

God's Fire is Present to Show He Alone is the Lord God Almighty!

Exodus 3:1-10; Ezekiel 1:26-28; 1 Kings 18:15-40; Hebrews 12:18-28 (WEB)

Exodus 3:1-10

¹ Now Moses was keeping the flock of Jethro, his father-in-law, the priest of Midian, and he led the flock to the back of the wilderness, and came to God's mountain, to Horeb. ² Yahweh's angel appeared to him in a flame of fire out of the middle of a bush. He looked, and behold, the bush burned with fire, and the bush was not consumed. ³ Moses said, "I will go now, and see this great sight, why the bush is not burned."

⁴ When Yahweh saw that he came over to see, God called to him out of the middle of the bush, and said, "Moses! Moses!"

He said, "Here I am."

⁵ He said, "Don't come close. Take off your sandals, for the place you are standing on is holy ground." ⁶ Moreover he said, "I am the God of your father, the God of Abraham, the God of Isaac, and the God of Jacob."

Moses hid his face because he was afraid to look at God.

⁷ Yahweh said, "I have surely seen the affliction of my people who are in Egypt, and have heard their cry because of their taskmasters, for I know their sorrows. ⁸I have come down to deliver them out of the hand of the Egyptians, and to bring them up out of that land to a good and large land, to a land flowing with milk and honey; to the place of the Canaanite, the Hittite, the Amorite, the Perizzite, the Hivite, and the Jebusite. ⁹Now, behold, the cry of the children of Israel has come to me. Moreover I have seen the oppression with which the Egyptians oppress them. ¹⁰ Come now therefore, and I will send you to Pharaoh, that you may bring my people, the children of Israel, out of Egypt."

Ezekiel 1:26-28

²⁶ Above the expanse that was over their heads was the likeness of a throne, as the appearance of a sapphire stone. On the likeness of the throne was a likeness as the appearance of a man on it above. ²⁷ I saw as it were glowing metal, as the appearance of fire within it all around, from the appearance of his waist and upward; and from the appearance of his waist and downward I saw as it were the appearance of fire, and there was brightness around him. ²⁸ As the appearance of the rainbow that is in the cloud in the day of rain, so was the appearance of the brightness all around.

This was the appearance of the likeness of Yahweh's glory. When I saw it, I fell on my face, and I heard a voice of one that spoke.

1 Kings 18:15-40

¹⁵ Elijah said, "As Yahweh of Armies lives, before whom I stand, I will surely show myself to him today." ¹⁶ So Obadiah went to meet Ahab, and told him; and Ahab went to meet Elijah. ¹⁷ When Ahab saw Elijah, Ahab said to him, "Is that you, you troubler of Israel?"

¹⁸ He answered, "I have not troubled Israel; but you, and your father's house, in that you have forsaken Yahweh's commandments, and you have followed the Baals. ¹⁹ Now therefore send, and gather to me all Israel to Mount Carmel, and four hundred fifty of the prophets of Baal, and four hundred of the prophets of the Asherah, who eat at Jezebel's table."

²⁰ So Ahab sent to all the children of Israel, and gathered the prophets together to Mount Carmel. ²¹ Elijah came near to all the people, and said, "How long will you waver between the two sides? If Yahweh is God, follow him; but if Baal, then follow him."

The people didn't say a word.

²² Then Elijah said to the people, "I, even I only, am left as a prophet of Yahweh; but Baal's prophets are four hundred fifty men. ²³ Let them therefore give us two bulls; and let them choose one bull for themselves, and cut it in pieces, and lay it on the wood, and put no fire under; and I will dress the other bull, and lay it on the wood, and put no fire under it. ²⁴ You call on the name of your god, and I will call on Yahweh's name. The God who answers by fire, let him be God."

All the people answered, "What you say is good."

²⁵ Elijah said to the prophets of Baal, "Choose one bull for yourselves, and dress it first; for you are many; and call on the name of your god, but put no fire under it."

²⁶ They took the bull which was given them, and they dressed it, and called on the name of Baal from morning even until noon, saying, "Baal, hear us!" But there was no voice, and nobody answered. They leaped about the altar which was made. ²⁷ At noon, Elijah mocked them, and said, "Cry aloud; for he is a god. Either he is deep in thought, or he has gone somewhere, or he is on a journey, or perhaps he sleeps and must be awakened."

²⁸ They cried aloud, and cut themselves in their way with knives and lances, until the blood gushed out on them. ²⁹ When midday was past, they prophesied until the time of the evening offering; but there was no voice, no answer, and nobody paid attention.

³⁰ Elijah said to all the people, "Come near to me!"; and all the people came near to him. He repaired Yahweh's altar that had been thrown down. ³¹ Elijah took twelve stones, according to the number of the tribes of the sons of Jacob, to whom Yahweh's word came, saying, "Israel shall be your name." ³² With the stones he built an altar in Yahweh's name. He made a trench around the altar, large enough to contain two seahs of seed. ³³ He put the wood in order, and cut the bull in pieces, and laid it on the wood. He said, "Fill four jars with water, and pour it on the burnt offering, and on the wood." ³⁴ He said, "Do it a second time;" and they did it the second time. He said, "Do it a third time;" and they did it the third time. ³⁵ The water ran around the altar; and he also filled the trench with water.

³⁶ At the time of the evening offering, Elijah the prophet came near, and said, "Yahweh, the God of Abraham, of Isaac, and of Israel, let it be known today that you are God in Israel, and that I am your servant, and that I have done all these things at your word. ³⁷ Hear me, Yahweh, hear me, that this people may know that you, Yahweh, are God, and that you have turned their heart back again."

³⁸ Then Yahweh's fire fell, and consumed the burnt offering, the wood, the stones, and the dust, and licked up the water that was in the trench. ³⁹ When all the people saw it, they fell on their faces. They said, "Yahweh, he is God! Yahweh, he is God!"

⁴⁰ Elijah said to them, "Seize the prophets of Baal! Don't let one of them escape!"

They seized them; and Elijah brought them down to the brook Kishon, and killed them there.

Hebrews 12:18-28

¹⁸ For you have not come to a mountain that might be touched, and that burned with fire, and to blackness, darkness, storm, ¹⁹ the sound of a trumpet, and the voice of words; which those who heard it begged that not one more word should be spoken to them, ²⁰ for they could not stand that which was commanded, "If even an animal touches the mountain, it shall be stoned".<u>Exodus 19:12-13</u> ²¹ So fearful was the appearance that Moses said, "I am terrified and trembling."<u>Deuteronomy 9:19</u>
²² But you have come to Mount Zion, and to the city of the living God, the heavenly Jerusalem, and to innumerable multitudes of angels, ²³ to the festal gathering and assembly of the firstborn who are enrolled in heaven, to God the Judge of all, to the spirits of just men made perfect, ²⁴ to Jesus, the mediator of a new covenant,<u>Jeremiah 31:31</u> and to the blood of sprinkling that speaks better than that of Abel.

²⁵ See that you don't refuse him who speaks. For if they didn't escape when they refused him who warned on the earth, how much more will we not escape who turn away from him who warns from heaven, ²⁶ whose voice shook the earth then, but now he has promised, saying, "Yet once more I will shake not only the earth, but also the heavens." <u>Haggai 2:6</u> ²⁷ This phrase, "Yet once more" signifies the removing of those things that are shaken, as of things that have been made, that those things which are not shaken may remain. ²⁸ Therefore, receiving a Kingdom that can't be shaken, let's have grace, through which we serve God acceptably, with reverence and awe, ²⁹ for our God is a consuming fire.<u>Deuteronomy 4:24</u>

- I decree and declare the Lord God/Adonai Elohim appears as a FLAME OF FIRE! Do not be frightened but TURN TO SEE and HEAR what the Lord/Adonai is saying. As you TURN to PAY ATTENTION, God/Elohim will SPEAK and DIRECT your way.
- I decree and declare each STEP you take is HOLY GROUND, for the Spirit/Ruach of the Most Holy One/El'Elyon is within you. As the Lord/Adonai CALLS YOU and YOU MOVE, you are TAKING the TERRITORY for the Lord/Adonai!
- I decree and declare God Almighty/El Shaddai SEES the suffering of His People throughout the Earth; He is CALLING you to take His DELIVERANCE to them. You will be used of the Lord/Adonai to bring His People OUT OF BONDAGE!
- I decree and declare the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai has the figure of Human appearance: from what appeared as His waist upward, GLOWING METAL, looking like a FIRE

encased in a frame; from what was like His waist down, the appearance of FIRE radiating around Him. The RADIANCE was like the appearance of the RAINBOW in the Cloud on a rainy day. It was the appearance of the likeness of the GLORY OF THE LORD/ADONAI!

- I decree and declare I will WALK IN INTEGRITY doing all the Lord/Adonai instructs me to do. I will not be dissuaded by accusations of the Populace or the Rulers who say, "Is it you, the one who causes trouble for us?" With the Spirit's/Ruach's BOLDNESS I will respond, I have not troubled the Land; rather, it is you and the leaders who have forsaken the COMMANDMENTS of the Lord/Adonai and followed after foreign gods!
- I decree and declare to the People of the Land, how long will you waver between two opinions? If the Lord/Adonai is God/Elohim, FOLLOW HIM, but if Baal is, follow him. Though the followers of Baal out-number those of us who stand for the ONE TRUE GOD/ELOHIM, GREATER are the Angelic hosts who are with us then they who are with the followers of Baal. The God who answers with FIRE, HE IS GOD!
- I decree and declare that You, Lord/Adonai, the God/Elohim of Abraham, Isaac and Israel, are God/Elohim in Israel and this Nation! I am Your Servant and all that I do is according to Your Word. For the sake of the People who are near, ANSWER ME, LORD/ADONAI, answer me, so that these People may know that You, Lord/Adonai are God, and that You have turned their heart back again! LET THE FIRE OF THE LORD/ADONAI FALL!
- I decree and declare we have not come to a Mountain that can be touched, and to a BLAZING FIRE, and to darkness and gloom and storm, and to the blast of a Ram's horn/Shofar and a VOICE whose Words make those who heard it fear. But we have COME TO MOUNT ZION to the City of the LIVING GOD, the Heavenly Jerusalem, and to Myriads of Angels, a JOYOUS GATHERING, and to the Assembly of the Firstborn who are written in a Scroll in Heaven, and to God/Elohim the Judge of ALL, and to the spirits of the Righteous Ones made perfect, and to Jesus/Yeshua, the Mediator of a New Covenant, and to the SPRINKLED BLOOD that speaks of something better than the blood of Abel.
- I decree and declare I will not refuse the One who is speaking! He warns us from Heaven. He has promised us, saying, "Yet once more I will shake not only the Earth, but also the Heavens." Therefore, since we are RECEIVING A KINGDOM that cannot be shaken, let us SHOW GRATITUDE—through this we may offer WORSHIP in a manner pleasing to God/Elohim, with reverence and awe. For our God is a CONSUMING FIRE!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction. The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, December 27, 2019]

Prepare to Enter New Territory

Joshua 1:1-11; 2 Corinthians 3:11-18; Psalm 16:1-11; Revelation 4:1 (WEB)

Joshua 1:1-11

Now after the death of Moses the servant of Yahweh,^[a] Yahweh spoke to Joshua the son of Nun, Moses' servant, saying, ² "Moses my servant is dead. Now therefore arise, go across this Jordan, you and all these people, to the land which I am giving to them, even to the children of Israel. ³ I have given you every place that the sole of your foot will tread on, as I told Moses. ⁴ From the wilderness and this Lebanon even to the great river, the river Euphrates, all the land of the Hittites, and to the great sea toward the going down of the sun, shall be your border. ⁵ No man will be able to stand before you all the days of your life. As I was with Moses, so I will be with you. I will not fail you nor forsake you.

⁶ "Be strong and courageous; for you shall cause this people to inherit the land which I swore to their fathers to give them. ⁷ Only be strong and very courageous. Be careful to observe to do according to all the law which Moses my servant commanded you. Don't turn from it to the right hand or to the left, that you may have good success wherever you go. ⁸ This book of the law shall not depart from your mouth, but you shall meditate on it day and night, that you may observe to do according to all that is written in it; for then you shall make your way prosperous, and then you shall have good success. ⁹ Haven't I commanded you? Be strong and courageous. Don't be afraid. Don't be dismayed, for Yahweh your God is with you wherever you go."

¹⁰ Then Joshua commanded the officers of the people, saying, ¹¹ "Pass through the middle of the camp, and command the people, saying, 'Prepare food; for within three days you are to pass over this Jordan, to go in to possess the land which Yahweh your God gives you to possess.'"

2 Corinthians 3:11-18

¹¹ For if that which passes away was with glory, much more that which remains is in glory.

¹² Having therefore such a hope, we use great boldness of speech, ¹³ and not as Moses, who put a veil on his face, that the children of Israel wouldn't look steadfastly on the end of that which was passing away. ¹⁴ But their minds were hardened, for until this very day at the reading of the old covenant the same veil remains, because in Christ it passes away. ¹⁵ But to this day, when Moses is read, a veil lies on their heart. ¹⁶ But whenever someone turns to the Lord, the veil is taken away. ¹⁷ Now the Lord is the Spirit and where the Spirit of the Lord is, there is liberty. ¹⁸ But we all, with unveiled face seeing the glory of the Lord as in a mirror, are transformed into the same image from glory to glory, even as from the Lord, the Spirit.

Psalm 16:1-11

Preserve me, God, for I take refuge in you.

- ² My soul, you have said to Yahweh, "You are my Lord.
- Apart from you I have no good thing."
- ³ As for the saints who are in the earth, they are the excellent ones in whom is all my delight.

⁴ Their sorrows shall be multiplied who give gifts to another god. Their drink offerings of blood I will not offer, nor take their names on my lips.

- ⁵ Yahweh assigned my portion and my cup. You made my lot secure.
- ⁶The lines have fallen to me in pleasant places. Yes, I have a good inheritance.
- ⁷ I will bless Yahweh, who has given me counsel. Yes, my heart instructs me in the night seasons.
- ⁸I have set Yahweh always before me.
- Because he is at my right hand, I shall not be moved.
- ⁹Therefore my heart is glad, and my tongue rejoices. My body shall also dwell in safety.
- ¹⁰ For you will not leave my soul in Sheol,
- neither will you allow your holy one to see corruption.
- ¹¹You will show me the path of life.
 - In your presence is fullness of joy.

In your right hand there are pleasures forever more.

Revelation 4:1

After these things I looked and saw a door opened in heaven, and the first voice that I heard, like a trumpet speaking with me, was one saying, "Come up here, and I will show you the things which must happen after this."

- I decree and declare this is a NEW DAY; NEW TERRITORY lies ahead of you. The Lord/Adonai says, "ARISE, NOW, and CROSS OVER into the Land I am giving to you! Every place on which the sole of your foot treads, I AM giving to you!"
- I decree and declare NO ONE WILL BE ABLE TO STAND BEFORE YOU all the days of your life! The Lord God/Adonai Eloheim will not fail you nor forsake you. TAKE COURAGE! BE STRONG! Only be VERY STRONG and resolute to OBSERVE DILIGENTLY the Word of God and all that He COMMANDS you. Do not turn from it to the right or to the left, so you will be SUCCESSFUL wherever you go. You will not be terrified or dismayed, for the Lord your God/Adonai Elohai is with you wherever you go!
- I decree and declare I CHOOSE to MEDITATE upon the Word of God/Elohim day and night, so that I am careful to do Everything written in it. This will cause my way to be PROSPEROUS and I will be SUCCESSFUL.
- I decree and declare Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh dwelling with us is GLORIOUS; we have God's/Elohim's PRESENCE within us. Therefore, we have such a HOPE that we can act with GREAT BOLDNESS.

- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is the Spirit/Ruach and where the Spirit of the Lord/Ruach Adonai is, THERE IS FREEDOM. We all, with unveiled face beholding as in a mirror the GLORY of the Lord/Adonai, are BEING TRANSFORMED into the same image from GLORY to GLORY – just as from the Lord/Adonai who is the Spirit/Ruach.
- I decree and declare I have found SHELTER in You, Lord God/Adonai Elohim apart from You I have no good. Lord/Adonai, You are my PORTION and my cup. You cast my lot. My boundary lines fall in PLEASANT PLACES surely my Heritage is BEAUTIFUL!
- I decree and declare I will BLESS the Lord/Adonai Who counsels me. Even at Night my Heart INSTRUCTS me. The Lord/Adonai is forever SET BEFORE ME. Since He is at my right hand, I WILL NOT BE SHAKEN!
- I decree and declare My Heart is GLAD and my Soul REJOICES. My Body also RESTS SECURE. You, Lord/Adonai, make known to me the PATH of LIFE. ABUNDANCE of JOYS are in Your PRESENCE, Eternal pleasures at Your Right Hand.
- I decree and declare I SEE a DOOR standing open in Heaven. And a voice like a Trumpet, said, "Come up HERE, and I will SHOW you what must take place after these things." The Spirit/Ruach is LEADING me in the WAY I should GO. I will not hesitate but FOLLOW His every COMMAND.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, June 26, 2019]